
 

 
GPO Box 2983, Melbourne VIC 3001   

Telephone:  1300 341 665  |  Email: regorgs@roc.gov.au 
Website: www.roc.gov.au 

25 February 2020 

 

Paul Richardson 
Director - Finance, Governance and Administration 
United Workers’ Union 
Sent via email: paul.richardson@unitedworkers.org.au  

                  CC: gkent@mgisq.com.au  
 
Dear Paul, 

 

United Voice - Victorian Branch 

Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2019 – (FR2019/215) 

I acknowledge receipt of the financial report for the year ended 30 June 2019 for the United Voice - 
Victorian Branch (the reporting unit).  The documents were lodged with the Registered 
Organisations Commission (the ROC) on 19 December 2019. 

The financial report has now been filed.  

The financial report was filed based on a primary review.  This involved confirming that the 
financial reporting timelines required under s.253, s.265, s.266 and s.268 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act) have been satisfied, all documents required under 
s.268 of the RO Act were lodged and that various disclosure requirements under the Australian 
Accounting Standards, RO Act and reporting guidelines (RGs) have been complied with.  A 
primary review does not examine all disclosure requirements. 

I make the following comments to assist you when you next prepare a financial report:  

You are not required to take any further action in respect of the report lodged. I make the following 
comments in relation to the lodged financial report.  

General purpose financial report  

Nil activity disclosures  

Item 21 of the RGs states that if any of the activities identified within items 10-20 of the RGs have 
not occurred in the reporting period, a statement to this effect must be included either in the 
financial statements, the notes or in the officer’s declaration statement.  I note that the officer’s 
declaration statement includes the following nil activity disclosures for which there was already an 
equivalent form of disclosure in the body of the notes: 

- “Agree to receive financial support from another reporting unit to continue as a going 
concern” and “agree to provide financial report to another reporting unit to ensure they 
continue as a going concern” are disclosed in both Note 1.20 and the officer’s declaration 
statement; 

- “Receive donations” is disclosed in both Note 3B and the officer’s declaration statement; 
and 
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- “Pay a grant that was $1,000 or less” and “pay a grant that exceeded $1,000” are disclosed 
in both Note 4I and the officer’s declaration statement. 

Please note that nil activities only need to be disclosed once. 

I also note that the notes and officer’s declaration statement contained nil activity information for all 
prescribed RG categories except the following:  

- Receive capitation fees from another reporting unit (RG13(b)); and 

- Receive revenue via compulsory levies (RG13(c)). 

Inconsistency in disclosure of financial information 

Note 4L Meeting and conference costs discloses fees/allowances of $25,122 for the 2019 financial 
year (2018: $13,905). The officer’s declaration statement, however includes a nil disclosure of 
paying to a person fees or allowances to attend conferences or meetings as a representative of the 
reporting unit. 

Operating report 

Prescribed information in Operating report  

Regulation 159(c) requires an operating report to contain the name of each person who has been 
a member of the committee of management of the reporting unit at any time during the reporting 
period, and the period for which he or she held such a position.   The ROC takes the words “at any 
time” to mean that all persons, whether they held their position for the full year or for part of the 
year, must be included.   

I note that the names of Stephen McGhie and Bracha Rafael appeared in the previous year’s 
operating report but did not appear in this year’s operating report.  There was no indication that 
Stephen McGhie or Bracha Rafael had resigned during, or at the end of, the previous year, and 
without any such indication the question arises whether their names have been inadvertently 
omitted. 

Reporting Requirements 

The ROC website provides a number of factsheets in relation to the financial reporting process and 
associated timelines.  The website also contains the s.253 RGs and a model set of financial 
statements.   

The ROC recommends that reporting units use these model financial statements to assist in 
complying with the RO Act, the s.253 RGs and Australian Accounting Standards.  Access to this 
information is available via this link. 

If you have any queries regarding this letter, please contact me on (03) 9603 0764 or via email at 
kylie.ngo@roc.gov.au.  

Yours sincerely, 

 

Kylie Ngo 
Registered Organisations Commission 
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REGISTERED ORGANISATIONS COMMISSION 

 

s 268 - Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

 

United Voice – Victorian  Branch 

CERTIFICATE BY PRESCRIBED DESIGNATED OFFICER 

 

I, Timothy John Kennedy being the National Secretary of the United Workers’ Union (the 

Union) certify: 

 

1. That the document lodged with the Registered Organisations Commission on 19 

December 2019 is the full report of the former United Voice – Victorian Branch (the 

Branch) referred to in section 268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 

2009. 

 

2. That the full report was provided to members of the Branch on 22 November 2019. 

 

3. That the full report was presented to the National Executive of the Union  on 17 

December  2019 in accordance with section 266 of the Fair Work (Registered 

Organisations) Act 2009. 

 

 

 

TIMOTHY JOHN KENNEDY 

NATIONAL SECRETARY 

UNITED WORKERS’ UNION 

 

 

Dated this 19th day of December 2019 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT'S OPERATING REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Operating Report 

The Committee of Ma.nagement pres.ants i1s repor1 on the operations of United Voice - Victoria Branch 
{the Branch) to, the finaooial year anded 30 JuM 2019. 

Principal Activ ities 

The principal activities of the Branch dur"1g the year fell in the following categories: 

• lmpfement<1tion of the decisions of the Branch Executive and th.e Branch Council, 
• lmplementaOOII or the union's agenda, Including strategic Industry, site organising projects or 

campaigns, 
• Representation of member, site. or industry grievances, disputes, and/ or Industrial matters_ 
• Provision to members of 8dvice and support on legal a.nd legislative matters. 
• Provision of training to officials and memberr. o.n Industrial Issues and dispute resoluUon. 
• Communication to members through speciflC and targeted pubUcatlons. 
• Administration of membership system, 

There have been no cl\anges in lhe prlncipal ao1ivities of the Branch during the year. 

Operating Result 

The statutory surplus for the 2018·19 year was $2,660,047. The surplus has been impacted by; 

• Gain on revaluation of the Drummond Street lnvestmen1 property, whkh has resutted in a ooe-off gatn 
of$2,520,878. 

• The adoption of AASB 9 - Financial Instruments, which has resulted In any fair value gains/ losses of 
the IFS investment portfofJO now aocounted 1hrough profit and loss (previously th.is was aocounted for 

via lhe avajlable for sale reserve). This has resUtled In a gain of $145,983 being recorded in this 
y&ars surplus. 

Excluding the above transaclions. t!ie operating result of the Branch is a deficit of $6,814. 

On 30 August 2019, members of both the National Union of Workers and United Voice voted to 
am~amate and create the United Workers Union. A copy of the deciaralio11$ of the amalgamation ballot 
conducted by the AustraJian Electoral Commission are available at www.l\vc.qov.au/cases--declslons­
ordersimajor•c:lRF.ei;/uni1ed-voioe;-MtiOnal-11ni9n-wnncers-propo;;ed•amalgAmalion 

The Fair Wo(k Cornmis:slon (FWC) at the o<>nch.J:1J,lon of a hearing on 1 October 2019 lo dolel'mlne an 
ama~amation d.ate for the United Workers Union pursuant to s73 of the Fsir Work ( Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009 Oxed the date as 11 Novomb(!r 2019 (2019 FWC 6756). 



UNITED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

COMMITTEE OF M4NAGEMENT'S OPERATING REPORT (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Slgntflcant Changes in Flnanclal Aff-.,lrs (Contlnuod) 

As a resull, tht'ISG financial statements have been p,epared on a liquidated basis. as !he reporting unit will 
not eomfnue to opetato p0st amalgamauon. ~ a result, lhe Branch'g assets and llablllLie.$ have been 
recorded at their fair value. 

Further, reqt.iired by Austraflan A.ooounting Standard$, the Branch adopted AA.SB 9 - Rnancial 
lll54ruments for lhe first time, A deta:iled assessmenl of the Impact on adoption of lhls new accounting 
sta-ndard ls listed at Note 1.4. 

There was no significant change to the financial affairs of the Branch during the year. 

After Balance Date Events 

As detailed in Note 2, the members of both the National Union of Workers .and United Voice voted to 
amalgamate :and create the Unlte4 Workers Unk>n (expected to commence from November 2019), 

Membel'$ Right to R.aign 

AU members have 1he right to resign from the Bfanch In accordance with National Rule 10. Re,signabOn 
of the Union (and Seelion 174 of the Act); namely, by proviCJng written notice addressed and delivered to 
the Secretary of the Branch of vklich they Me a member. 

Mombe-rship ot the Branch 

Tot.al number or mombt)l'S as at 30 June 2019: 15,624. 

Employa.s or tho Branch 

TtlO numbor (I( Pol'SOns whO wel'G, et the end of the period lo which the report reJates, employees of the 
Bmnch., v.here ltle number of employees incfvcfes bottt fulHime and pan-OO'le employees measured on a 
full-time equivalent basis Is 57, 13. 



UNITED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT'S OPERATING REPORT {CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Members of tho Committee of Managemen t 

The name of each person v.t.o has been a member °'' the Committee of Mal\ilgemen1 of the Btaneh at 
any time during the reporting period, and the period for 'Mlich he or she l:lekl 6uch a position Is as: follows: 

Nnmo 
Kerrie Oevfr 
Danny HIii 
JO$Slca Walsh 
Ben Redford 
M$r9&rita M1.1rray-Stark 
Joanette Shepherd 
Victor BanienJos 
Anthony Hayman 
David Arthur 
Lucitlda Gleed 
0,ristjne Aicken 
David Redmond 
Paul Kershaw 
Sue $"'lay 

Period o f Appointmont 
01/07/18-30/06/19 
01/07/18-13/06/lii 

01/07/18-30/06119" 
01/07118- 30/06119 .. 

01/07118-30/06119 
01/07/18-30/06/19 
01Rl7/18- 30/06119 
01/07/18 - 30/06119 
01/07/18 - 30/06/19 
01107/18 - 30106/19 
01/07/18 - 3010~/19 
01/07118 - 1210>6/19 
01/07118 - 30/00119 
01/07118- 30/06/19 

Po,ltlon 
Branch Pr8$ident 
Deputy President 
Branch Seereta,y 
Stanch As.-sistant Secretary 
E.xecutiw Member 
Executive Member 
Execuliv<! Mclffl~r 
Executive Member 
Executive Member 
Exeo.rtlve Member 
Executive Member 
E.xec::utive member 
Exocutlvc Member 
Executive Member 

• Jessica Waist! resigned a~ Branch S80'<ttary on 3 July 2019 
•• Ben Redford was appolnted Aeling Branch Secretary effective 3 July 2019 

Wage Rocovc.,y Activity 

The Branch t00ntinuously undertakes reCCNety ot wages on behalf of members. It ls Branch p,ottCy that 
any successful wage recovery from employers is paid directly to those effected members. As a resutt, no 
w~e re<:0ve,y activity is acoounted through via the Brilnch's bank aooounts and therefore nol reflected in 
these financmt statements. 

Officers or Members who are Suporannu3tlon Fund Trustees/ Direc tors of a Company th3t Is a 
Superannua.tion Fund Trustn 

No ofOcetst members or employef;!S of the organlsaUon are Oltectors of comp;,lnies the! are trustees ot 
superannuation funds where a criterion for the officer of member being the ltustee or director is that the 
officer or member Is an officer or member o( a reglste,ed organisation 

Auditor's Independence Declaration 

A copy of the sudilofs independence dedar.illon Is set out on page 6. 

This repon Is m3de in oooordance 'ffll:h a resotution of the Committee of Management and Is signed for 
and on behalf of the Committee of Management by: 

23 Oc1ober 2019 

North Melbourne 

5/G7 



AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 
TO THE COMMITTEE OF IMANAGEMENT OF 

UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

o«oont.wus, .,. nud.!101) 

CP080X1087 
6risbane~4001 Australia 

t:;+617J0024800 
F:,.·61 7 3229 S60l 

PO flO}( 3360 A.UW:il\.1far, 
Southport Qld 421S AUStro1li3 

t +61 7 5S91 l(i61 
f: +61 155911712 

e: int<>@m~iSq.Wm,;~u 
www.mgJsq..c.om.au 

As lead auditor for the audit of United Voice - Victoria Bf anc.h for 1he year ended 30 June 2019; I declare 
that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there hi;tve been no contraventions of any eppli~ code of 
profMsional conduct in rolal1oo to Lhe audlt. 

MGI Audit Pty Ltd 

GI Kent 

Director - Audit ,& Assura.1100 

North Melbourne 

.23 October 201 9 

ReglslraUon number (as registered by the RO Commissioner under the RO Act}: AA2017/2 
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UNITED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

FOR TI-IE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

On 23 October 2019, the Committee of Management 0 1 the Branch pa$Secl the (olowfng resolution to the 
General Purpose Financial sta!ements (GPFR) of the reporting unit for the flf'lanclal year ended- 30 June 
2019. 

The Commltt-ee or Management cle<::lares ln relition 10 the. GPFR that in its opinion: 

(e) lhe finandal statement& and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

{b) the fioariclal statements and notes comply with any o;her requirements imposed by tho Reporting 
Guioolines or Part 3 of Cllapw 8 of the Fair Wor~ (Reg/steted Ofl/8-.ms) Act 2009 (the RO Aci); 

(c} lhe frnancial $1atemen1s ;1nd notes give a true e.nd fair view of the financial performance, nnanclru 
position and caro Hows of 1M Branch for the financial )'e3110 whlcll they relate; 

(0) tttere are reasonable grounds to believe that the Branch wil be able to pay its debts as and when 
lhey become due: and payable: and 

(e) during th,e financi~I ye&r to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that yaar:: 

I. meetings: of the Cocnmittee of Management were held in accordance with fhe rules of the 
orgooisaOOn and the rules of the Branch concerned; and 

IL If~ flnanclal affairs o-f the Branch have been managed in accordanoe 'M1.h the rules of the 
or9arii53!ion, inclllcling I.he rules of the branch concerned; and 

iiL the financial records of tho Smncn have baen kept and maintained tn oo:::ordance witfl the RO 
AC/, llOO 

Iv. ~er-e the organlsatlon coosists of two or more reporting units, the financial records of the 
reporting unit have been kept, as fat as practi:eable, in a ooosistent manner to each of the o-1her 
ropotllng units of the organisation; and 

v. when:t Information h8S been sooght In any requeSI of a m-embe. of the re·porting unit or 
Com.missioner duly made under section 272 of th& RO Act. that information has been pro\/ided to 
the m-ember ~ Commissioner; and 

vi. where any order for Inspection of financial records made by !he Fair Work Comm~n under 
section 273 of the RO Act there has been compllance. 

This ded'aratlon Is made In acc0tdance with a re.soluUon of the Committee of Management. 

Nt1.mo or oulgnated Officer: 

TfUe of Doslgnated Officer: 

Slgnntur-e; 

Dato: 

Ben R~fOfl! 

23 October 2019 
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Independent Audit Report to the Members of 
United Voice - Victoria Branch 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 

Opinion 

ac.countam.$ +-~ itOt$ 

GPOBO:X 1087 
Bfis·baot Old 4001 AuScr.illa 

t: -+6 l 7 3002 4800 
f;..-61732295603 

PO Box .)360 AU!.t1a1t.a Fait 
Souchport Qld 421 S AUt.">lr ali,1 

t: +61 7 5S91 166 1 
f. +61 7 SS911172 

~ lnfo@mgiSq.com.au 
wwwJTigi:sQ.corn.au 

Wo have audited the ftnancial report of United Voice - Victoria Branch (the Branch), Which comprises 1he 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, the statement of comprehensive inOOf'ne, statement of 
changes In equity and statemenl of cash flows for the yea, ended. notes to the f!nancial statements, 
Including a summary of slgntflcant accounting policies: and the Committee of Management Statameni, the 
subsection 266(2A} report and the Officer Oeote.ration Statement. 

In our opinion, the accompanylng Onaticlal report presents fairly, in al material aspects. tt'Mt financial 
position of the United Voice - Victoria Branch as at 30 June 2019, end its financial perfotmanc,e and it& 
cash flows fo, tile year ended on that dale In accordance wtt.h: 

a) the Australian Account!~ Standards; and 

b) any other requirements imposed by lhe Reporting GuldeUnM or Part 3 of Chapter 8 00 the Fair 
Worl< (Registorod 0rgBOi$8tioOS) Act 2009 (1he RO Aci). 

Basis for Oplnl-0n 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australiaf'l Audfting Standards. Our responsibiliiies under 
those s1andards .:ire further descrlbod In tha Audhot's Responsibilities for the ACJdft of the Flnanclaf Report 
section of our report. We are Independent of the Branoh in &eeordanoe with the ethical requirements of 
1he Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board"s APES 110 Code of Ethics for ProftJssionaJ 
Accountants {the Code) that are relevant to our audit of th& financial repor1 in Australia, We have atao 
fulfilled our other ethical responslbifities In .accordanoe with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaJned Is suffieien1 and appropriate 10 provide a basis for 
our opinion, 

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Liquidation Valuation1 Basis 

Without qualifying lhe oplnl9<1 ~•P,.,~S<!~ • ~ove, ~Henlion is drnwn lo Nole 1 In Ille financial rep,or1 which 
$fates that lhe report of the Branch has been prepared en a llquldation basis, given the members of boLh 
the Natfonal Union of Workers and United Voioe have ~eed to amalgamate to fonn the United Workers 
Un.ion. The assets alld liablltties of the Branch therefore have boe-n measured at their estfmated net 
realisable value :and expecLed settl&ment amounts respectively. 

8161 
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Information Othor than the Fina.nclal Roport and Au:dltor's Rcpon Thereon 
The Committee of Management is responsible for the other Information. The other info,matJon obtained at 
!he da!e or this audi1or's report io In lhe Op&raling Report aoeompanying the financial reporL 

Our opinion on Iha financial report does not cover the other lnfoonatiol'I and aooocdl~l'y we do not 
express any fform of BSSurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection wilh our audit of the flnandal report, our responsibility Is to read the othe< Information and. 
in doing so, consider whet.her Iha other information is materlally inc:onslstent with the fln.ttncial report o, 
my know!edg,e obtained in lhe audit or olhe1wise appears lo be materially misstated. tf, based on the work 
we have pecfonned, wo oonc!udtt that there is a material mlSSlatemeot of this other informa1ion. we are 
required to report that feel We have nolhfflg to r&port In I.his r&ga,d. 

ResponcibUitios of commtttco of Mam,gomont for me Flna,nc-lat Report 

The Committee of Management of the Stanch is respor.tSible for 1he p<eparatlon of the financial report that 
gives a true and fair view in acc0r'd3nce v,i1h Australian Accounting Standards and the RO Act. and lor 
such lntemal cootroj as lne Committee of Management determine Is necessary to enable the preparation 
of the financial report that gives a true and fair view arnd is free from matetiaf misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

tn ptoparlng the financial reporl, the Committee of Management fs 1esponsible for $$Sessing the Branch's 
abiltty to continue es a going concern, disclosing, ss appl;c:;able, maltOt$ tMated to going conecm and 
using lhe going concem basis of accounUng unless tne Committee of Ma.nsgement either intend lo 
liquidate the Branch or 1o cease operations, or have no, realiric a!temative but to do so. 

Auditor-s Reispoosibilitlos for tho Audit of the Ftm'I.OCial Report 

Our objectiv& is to ob1ain reasonable assurance about whetner the financial repo11 as- a whole is free from 
maleriel mi$5tijt~ent1 whether due lo fraud or error, and to inue an auditor'$ re-port lhat lnclYdos my 
opinion. Ro~nablo assutanoe ls a high level ot assurance, but ls not a guarantee that an avc:Ot 
conducted In 3COOJ'dance with A1.1$lralf.an Auditing Standards v.ill always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Mi sstatements can arfse from fraud o, enor and are considered material if, individuaJly or 
In tile aggregate. they oovld reasooabty be expected to in.lluence the eoonomk: d<rcisbns of us-,rs taken 
on Lh$ bclSis of lhe flnanclal report, 

As part or an audit In accocdance with the Australl8fl Auditing Stand&rds, we exeroise professional 
judgeme·nt snd maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess lhe lisles of malerlal misstatement of the financial report. whether due to fraud °' 
enor~ design and perform audit proceducos respons:ive lo th0$G risks. and obta.-i audit evidence tha1 ls 
sufficient and appropriate to l)f(Mde a basis- for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a mate,ial 
rn~~tl['ment resulting from fraud is higher than for ooo tttsult!ng from ettor, as fraud may lnvol\'e 
cottuslon, forpe,y, lntentlonal omtSSions, misrep,ese:ntailon$. or the override: of internal control 

• Ob1ain ani understanding of internal control relevant to Iha audi1 in ord&.r to design audit priOCeCures 
lhal ato appropriate In the circumS:tances, but not for the purpose of e:xpressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness. of the Branch's inlemal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness ot accounting poldes used and the reasonableness cf aCCO\lnting 
eslime.tes and related disclosures made by the Cornimittee of Managemenl 

9167 



Auditor'$ RosponslbiliUe·$ for tho Audit o f the Financial Report {continued) 

• Conclude on the approprtateoess of tne Commtuee of Mal)agement's use of the going concern basis 
ol accounting and, based on the autfrt avidenoe obtained. whelh&r a matatlal uncenainty exists related 
to even1s or conditions thal may cast slgnfficant doubt on the Branch's 3bifrty to continue as 8 going 
concern. If we cooclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are roquir&d lo draw attention In our 
auditor's r,eport to the ret&ted di:sclosu.res in the financial report or. if such diiclosures are inadequete, 
to modify o ur opinloo. Our condusions are based on the audit evidaneo obtained up to ttie data of our 
auditor's report. However, future event$ or oonditions may cause the Branch to cease to continue as a 
going conoem. 

• Evaluate the overalt presentation, structure and contem of the flnanclal report. lnclvdlng the 
disciosure-s, and whother the financial reporl repce:sents the underlying tran$aclioos and (lv(:lnts in a 
manner th.at achieves fair presentation, 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence re.garding the financial information of the en tities 0< 

business activities within the Branch to express an opinion on the i inanciaJ report. We are responsibie 
for lh8 direcHoo. suporvision and parlormanoo of Ille Branch's lltllfil. WO rl!fllaill sololy r0sponsiblo for 
o.,. audit opinion. 

We commun icate 'Mlh the Commiltee of Management regarding, among other maltcrs. the planned 
sioope end 1imin9 of the audfl end significant audit findings, lndud!ng any significant deficienciei in 
;n!e:mal COt\ttoJ thal we idoentify during our audit. 

Dttclara.tlon 
I dedare that I em an approved auditor, a member of Chartered Aooountants Austrajie -and New Zealand 
and hold a eu«ent Public Practice Certificate. 

MGI Audit Plly ltd 

GI Kent 

Director - Au-dit & Assurance 

North Mef.boume 
23 October 2019 

Registration n umber (as registered by the RO Commissioner under lhe RO Aet): AA2017!2 



UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 J UNE 2019 

2019 2018 
Noles $ s 

Rovenuo 
Membe<shlp subscriptloo 8,836,139 8,555,476 
Gain on sale of property, plant and equlpmont 314 
lnvestmerBt Income 3A 759,984 899,855 
Grants or idonations 38 108.254 462,953 
Property re\•enue JC 464,406 412,278 
Other revenue 30 3,011,784 173.835 

Total revenue 13,180,881 10,504,397 

Ex'perlS-8$ 

EmployQ;e, expenses 4A (7,114,053) (6,872,559) 
Indirect employment costs 48 (111,044) (105,685) 
Affillatlon fees 4C (213,506) (207,532) 
Administration expanses 40 (160,116) (90,637) 
Campaign costs 4E (357,539) (249,400) 
Communication oosts 4F (11,203) (156,160) 
Depreciation and amortisation 4G (218,691) (206,925) 
Finanoe oosts 4H (129,281) (74,609) 
Grants ilnd donations 41 (191,071) (6,974) 

lnf0<malion teohnology oosls 4J (84,036) (62,658) 
Legal and pcofessionaJ costs 4K (192,257) (268,532) 
Meeting end conference oost.5 4L (184,580) (129,814) 

Member costs 4M (17,613) (21,848) 
Prope:rty costs 4N (577,662) (674,290) 

Sustonlatoon roos 40 !958,180! (1 ,006,489) 
Total expcn$es !10,520,834) (10, 134,312! 

Surplus for itho yoar 2,660,047 370,085 

Other comp,rehensive income (net of income tax) 
Fa~ value gain on revaluation on land and 

13,829,904 bulldlngs 
Total comprehensive Income for tho yoar 16,489,951 370,085 

The above statement should be 1'8ad In oonjundlon with the notas. 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2019 

2019 2018 

Notes $ $ 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Cash and '1;:ash equivc'lle.nu; 5A 834,254 385.238 
Trade and Qther receivabJ8s 5B 371,296 450,743 

Financial assets SC 21,553,121 7,314,331 

Other curr,ent 8$Sels 50 107.503 122.972 
Land and buildings 6B 15,400,000 

Investment pcopertlos 6C 2,800,000 

Motor vehlctes 60 61,651 

Furniture and equipment 6E 272,054 

Total ~urrerrt assets 41 ,199,879 8,273,284 

Non-Cutrent Assots 
Financial assets 6A 14,190.638 

Lan<I and lbvilding• 6B 1,227,794 

Investment prOp8rtfes 6C 288,511 

Motor veh.ldes 60 20.500 
Furniture and equipment 6E 726,038 

Total non+current assets 16,453,481 

Total ili•ets 41 ,199,879 24,726,765 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Trade payables 7A 537,857 551,620 

Olher payable• 78 383,798 244,956 

Employee: provisions 8A 1,239,481 1,298,911 

Total current IJ3bllltles 2,160,936 2,095,487 

Non-Current Lleblli1ies 
Employee provisions SA 82,286 

Total non-eurronl 1/abl/Wes 82.286 

Total llabllltlos 2,160,936 2,177,773 

Net assets 39,038,943 ·22.548,992 

EQUITY 
ReservM g 13,829,904 

Retained iearnfngs 25,209,039 22,548,992 

Total equity 39,038,943 22,548,992 

The above statement shouid be read in conjunction with the notes, 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

AFS Asset Retained Totat 
R9$erve Revaluatfon earnings G<!Ulty 

Reserve 
Notes $ s $ $ 

Balance as at 1 July 2017 (219,276) 22,398,183 22.178.907 
Adjustment for change in aocounting 219,276 {219,276) 
stal'Klards 
Deficit for I.he ~rear 370,GaS 370,085 

Othec comprehensive income 
Closing bc3lance as at 30 June 2018 22,548,992 22,548,992 

SUtplus for the year 2,660,047 2,660,047 

Other compcehensive incorne 13,829,904 13,829,904 

Closlng balance as at 30 June 2019 13,829,904 25,209,039 39,038,943 

The above statement should be read in ·conjunction ,vttJ, the notes. 
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UNITED VOICE-VICTORIA BRANCH 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

2019 2018 
NolGS $ s 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
C•sh rec~lved 

Receipts from other reporting utlits 108 612,471 436,999 
Receipts from members and other ws1.0mers 10,067,935 10,242,657 

Interest and invesunenl raoeipls 843,942 916,854 
11,534,343 11,596,510 

c ash usod 
Employees and suppliers (10,161,746} (9,5'54,000) 

PaymMt 10 otMnapOi'linO unlu 108 {1,082,!IG0) (1,379,878} 

!11,244,706! ! 10,933,878) 
Net C.&$h ll)rovided by operating activities 289,642 662,632 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Proceed'.S from sale of property. pJant and equlpm enl 6,719 
Proceed$ on the mpayment ol Joan from United Voice 100,000 100.000 
-Western Australia Branch k>arl 
Proceed$ on the repayment of loan from United Volce 

2,351,19 1 ,.a,809 
- Ou&ensland Brandl loan 
(Payments)/ proceods rrcm bank bills ~nd teem (2,120,542) 2,321,889 
deposits 

Procoed! M IM sale of lnv~1ments 995,610 
Payments f0< property, plant and equipment (145,178) (286,888) 
Payments to United Voice -aueenstand Bl'anch (2,500,000) 
(loan) 
Payments on acqu.sition or Investments (232,818) (1,3"18,056) 

Net cash u&ed in invu tln9 actlvltlcs (40,626) (538,436) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Net increase i.n cash held 249,016 , 26,196 

cam &. ca<>n l!(jtllva!an1s at Ille beginning or me 385,238 259,042 
reporting ~r!Od 
Ca$h & cash equivalents a t the end of the reporting 10A 634,254 365,238 
period 

The above sl.'ltement should be re3d In co!'lunctlon with the notes. 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

REPORT REQUIRED UNDER SUBSECTION 2$5(2A) OF THE FAIR WORK (REGISTERED 
ORGANISATIONS) ACT 2009 
FOR THE VEAR ENDED $6 JUNE 2619 

The Committee of Management presents the expenditure report as required under st.tbs8cUon 255(2A) 
of the Faff WM (Regislered Organisations) Act 2009 on the Branch fQ( the y&ar ended 30 June 2019: 

2019- Elcpendllure as required u nder s . 2S5l2A) RO Ad 

lk,.011<rt , l l11,.lol«IO!h1 

""'f'•,P-•.W>?! 1.1~-i 
oflofUllil. 1,,11111:tou 
.. 11, ..... 

•ttJ,lf(llfl 

2018 - Ext1tndltu1t H re,~uJrtd undu ~. 2sst2A} RO An 

Acting Branch Secretary 

23 Oclobor 2019 
North Melbourne 

• llt "'111t.-.i1:,c-, illofv.lltf 
le~! I dhtl((n1UIO: 

r ,r~••Vfl«'ol 
' ,,lfrAWf'I 

... 1~ 

•01N.w111 1,,~,-,.1,n 
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UNITED VO[CE - VICTORJA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

ln~ex to the Notes of the FlnaneiaJ Statements 

Nole 1 

Note2 

Nole 3 

Not<: 4 

Note 5 

Note 6 

Note 7 

Note6 

Note9 

Note 10 

Note 11 

Note 12 

Nole 13 

Noie 14 

Noie 15 

Nole 16 

Nole 17 

Nole 18 

Summaiy of sig.nfficant 9000c,m1ing policie:s 

Events -after the reponin9 period 

tnoome 

Expenses 

C\lrrent asse1s 

Non-current assets 

Corrent liabitities 

Provisions 

Reserves 

Cesh flow 

Contingent liabilities, assets end commttmenls 

Related party disclosures 

Remunerolion of auditors 

Financial instruments 

Fair vefue measurement& 

Section 272 Fair Work {Rsgfststed OrgtJrnsmions) Act 2009 

Branch details 

Segment information 



UNITED VOIC E - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 1 Summaty of significant accounting poticie:&: 

1.1 Basj s ,of preparat io n of the financi al s tatements 
The financial statements aro ge.neral purpose financial $t8t&meots and have been p<eparoel in 

socordanee mlh Austrailan Accounling Standards and Interpretations iS:S:ued by tho Australian 
Accounting Slandards Boa,d {AASB) thal appty roe- the reporting period, and lhe Ftrir Work 
(Regfatmed Organisation) Act 2009. For the purpose of Pf8panl'lg tho genetal putpose financial 
statements. Unl.1ed Voice- Victoria Branch (lhe Branch) is a not4 for.proftt ootlty. 

Uguldaled Basis of Preparattoo 

As referred to kl the Oparating Report, on 30 AUgU$t 2019, mernM-fS of both lhG Natlon~I Union of 
WOtkers and Untted VOioe voted to amalgamate and create the Uni1ed Worker$ UnlOf'I 

Due to the intoot1o,n lo amalgam.ate tJnd thorefore r>o klng&r oporat& out of the Branch, lho 
Comm1ttee of Management have dctermlned 'll'lat the going concem basis of preparolion (as 
applied tn previous yeats) t:S no longer appropriate .. Aoeordingly the financlal statements are not 
prl)J)ared 0r1 a going COr'lcem basis. The Committoo of Management have app&ed the ,equ'irements 
of paragraph 25 or AA.SB 101 Presentatlon ot Financial Slatemerits v.tlich states that 'when the 
Rn.mefill t~f)Orl. Is nOI. prep-.attld an tt going concorn basis, thm ftJCt shll'II be dlsclosed, toge,/l~ wlth 
the basis on which thtJ. /i11anclal ropott is prepared and lhe reaoon why the entity Is not regarded as 
a gojng concern'. 

Im Poet of adontlno lhe Uouldalloo bosis of omoaralion on mcasuremenL classfflcation 01 A5.'tB1R 
and llPWUies, and dlSCIOSY(O§ in me financial reoort 
Under the llqvldatlon basis of prepara1ion, assels and llabillUes are me.asurecl at ltleir lhqukfation 
vaJue. 'The liquidation valve of assets Is tiler- net realsabfe vatue. Net reatlsa.ble value Is based on 
1he proceeds recelvable on dJspos31 less res.'tr\Jcture and llquldation costs as detailed in lhe 
acc::ounllng policies noted below. The llquldallon w!ue of liabilities Is their expected senlement 
amount as detailed In the accounting policies noted below, Any 9ai:ns or iosses resul•ing from 
measuring assets and flablllties to che tlqufdat{Qn value are recognised in p,o-fi1 or lo$$, 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO T HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note1 Summ ary of $ignlftet1nt accounting pollclos {Contlnvcd) 

1.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued) 

Undw lho liquidation basis of acoountlng, all assets and llabllltles are classilled as current. In 
adopting !ho liquklalion basis., the Committee of Management have continued to apply the 
ctrscios.ure requirements of Auslfafian Accounting Standards, to the extent they are relevant to tile 
liquklalion basis. and have modirced them wh8f'9 this Is considered appropria.le. In particular. tile 
financial tt!port does not Jnd ude aD or lhe disclosures reQUired by the following standards oo the 
l>asi• lhal tho di.clo•ur•• aro not oonoldoro<I retovanl for declslon•maklng by o>er1 as deS<ribed 
below: 

• AA$8 5 Non.-current Assel:5 Held for Safe 1ifld Discontinued Operations 
Given lhat tf'le entire reporting unit Is to be discootlnue<I~ the disclosures under AASB 5 that 
separate between continuing and disoon1inuing operations are not oonsicklred relevant lo 
users. 

• AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Oisdosures 
The information on exposures to fina~I risks B<e not coosidered relevant to usel'S given 
th.at the financial rl':sk exposures are not r~reseotaUve of the risks that will exist going 
fo,ward. 

The accounting poliOiM adopted are con$isten1 with mose of the prev4ous financial year except for 
changes speciflod mlated to the adoplioo of lhe liquldatlon basis of prepa,allon., 

Comparative Information hi1$ nol be(:ln ,estated, and Is measured and f)(esented on a going 
concoon basis. 

s1an!Ocan1 accountloo estimates fudQemoots and assumotlons 
Tho p,eparation of tlnanclal statements in conformity wlth Australian Accoootlng Standards 
rcqulr6S lhe use of oerta!n ctidcal aocoootlng estimates. II 3l&o requires man8gement to exercise 
its Judgement In the process of app!ylng the reporting unit's aocounting policies. The areas 
Involving a higher degree of jodgement °' compleX,ty. or areas vdlere assumptions •nd estimates 
a.re slg:nlficant to lhe flna.ncial statements are disclosed fn below: 

The preparation of flnancl31 statem·en1s requires estimales and 8$$Umplions oonoeming the 
applica:tion of accounting policies to be made by the reporting unit. Estimates are con11nually 
evaluated and are based on hfstorleal experlence and other faci.ors, inctuding eXPectationa: of fuuwe 
evenls !hat a.re bet-leved to be reasonabte under the circums.lances. The eslima1es- end 
assumptions that have 3 slgnfficant risk of causing a material 3djvstmen.! to the canying a.mount's of 
assets and Uabiitles within the ne>t1 flnanclal year are dl.scussecl below. Revisions to 8000Untlng 
estimates are recognised In the period rn which the estlmete Is revised and in any future periods 
alfecl&d. 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 1 S umma.ry of s ig nificant accounting polf.cJu (Continued) 

1.1 Basis cf preparation of the flnancial stat oment$ (Continued) 

Uau1dation valve and liquidation exoenses 
Under the liquidation basis of aooou,tlng, assets and llabl:litle.s are measured at liquidation value. 
The liquidation valve of assets end llabllioos Is the estimated value for which a.sse,s are realised 
30d flabllides settled.. 

1.2 Compa rat ive amounts 

When irequir&d- by Accoon.ting Standards, oornp9'81ive f19LWes have been adjusted 10 confonn 10 
changes in presenl'aOO(I ro, lhG curtent f'inancial year. 

1.3 Slgnlflcant accounting Judgements and C$tlm3tcs 

The foilowing accounlwlg assumptions or estimates have been identfffed that have e significant 
risk of causing a m aterial adjustment co the carrying amounts of essels end liabilities wi.1h.in the 
next reporting period. 

Key Estimates 

Impairment - general 
The Branch assesses impairmenl at each reporffng period by evaluation of conditions and events 
specific lo the Branch that may be indicative of impairm ent ltiggers. RecoverabJe a.mount$ of 
relevanl assets are ass8$sed using value-in-use calculations which incOfporale V8-!io us key 
assumptions. 

No impainnent has been recognised in respect c>f the C\.lrrent year. 

Key Judgements. 

Useful Jiv6s of plant ar:d equjpmenl 

Plant <:llld equlptnent a.re depreciated over the useful life of the asset and lhe depreciation rates 

ace assessed when the asset we ac:quised or when there is a sigrlificant change lhat affects the 
remaining useful life of the asset 

P10Vis/ron for impairment Of 1f1Ceivable.s 
The value of tho provision for impairmenl of receivables is esti'matad by coosidet'ing lhe ageing of 
,ooelvables. communteallon with tM debtors and ptior hisloty . 

On-cost for cmployoe enti'll8Jmml proWskm 
The 0tat'1Ch revised Hs estlmtite for on-costs for empfoyeG provision during IM yea, to include 
s:uperannuation, workers compensation and paytoll tax. 

19/,;7 



UNITED VOICE -VlCTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED} 
FDR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 1 Summary of significant aec:ountlng por•clcs (Continued) 

1.4 New Australian Accounting Standards 

Adoptiofl of New Austral/an Accounting Standard rcq'1lrements 

The sccountfn9 policies odopled are consistent wilh those of lhe pfevious financial year ax-copt for 
tbe fo(lowlng standards and emendments, \\tlich h{tve been adopted for the first time this financial 
year 

• AASe 9 Fmanoial lnzln/ments and r~lovanl ~mending si.,ndar<ls, which rel)ll!Ces MS·e 1 :W 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 

The Branch !'las 3dopted AASB 9: Flnandal lnst-rurnents wifh a date of initial application Of 1 July 
2018. ,As a resvl1. the Stanch has changed its financial instruments accounling po6ciM as 
detailed in the signific{U'II accounting policies. noie. 

Coosid!ering the initial application of MSB 9 during the financieJ period, fiMncial S1atomenI Uno 
ftems h3Ve been effe~ed for lhe current and prior periods. Below in this note tire the adju:slnt8nts 
made to the affected financial statement line i1ems.. 

AASB 9 requires retrospective applicalion v,;th some exceptions. 

0I.sclc>.Sure: Initial application of AASB 9 

There were no financial assets/ liabifities which the Branch had p,eviOUS:ty designated, as folt 
value lhrough profit or kiss under AA.SB 139: r.,ancial too-trumonts: Recognktlon atid 
Me-asurement that were subject to reclassifieation/e~cteid reciassificatlon upori I.he apptk::.atlon of 

AAS89. 

The Branch applied MSB 9 (as revised In July 2014) and the telated COJ'lsequential amertdments 
to other MSBs. New requirements ware introduced for tho classit.catlon and measurement of 
financial assets and financial tlabililies, as well as fDf impainncnl 

Financial assets in tenns of AASB 9 need to be measured subscquentty at either amort1sed cost 
or fair valuo on 11\o batit of 1110 anlily't butiMst model :llld !he eash flow ehsrscIetlstic·s of lhe 
financial assets, as follows: 

debt lnvMtments that are held 'Mthin a business mode, wf)ose goal is to coRect the 
oontractual cash flows. a·nd th.at have con~ractual cash nows trial ara solely payments of 
principal and inta,es1 on the prlnc!pal amoont outstanding, are s-obsequen11y measured at 
amortised cost; 

debt investments Iha! are hekl v.ithin a b usinoss m0d&1 whos& goal is both to, collect 
conlraetual cash flo-NS and 10 sell it, and th.al h~ve COfltroo1ual cesh flows that are purely 
paymenis of principal and interest on the principal amounl outstanding, afe sut>sequenuy 
measured ~t fair value thtough other comprehensive Income; and 

all olher debl invesbnents and equity investmenls aro mGosured al !air value lhrough fl(Ofil or 
Joss. 



UNITeD VOICE-VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTitilUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 1 Summaiy of significant accounting polfdes (Continued) 

1,4 Now A.ustrall-an Accounting Stinda.rds (Continued) 

Disclosure: lnltle.l ~ppllca.llon o f AASB 9 (con'tlnuod) 

Oespite lhe issues mentioned abov&, the onlily mc:1y make lrtevocabl6 elactiOn at lnitfal fec~nitlon 
of a financial asset es fol!OW$: 

the entity may choose to present subsequem changes in fai'ir value of an equity investment 
th~I Is not helcf for lradlng and not a contingent con.siderotlon In a business comblnaUon in 
otrner comprehensive income; and 

tho enlily may choc;,se to present a debt inve:stment that meets the amortised cost or fair value 
thrQogh other co.mpretienslve lncome criteria as measured at fair value through profit or k>s.s K 
this choice significaruly reduces an accounting mismatch.. 

When :an equity inves1menl ~, faiir value throu9ll 01her comprehenslve Income h8s a gain or loss 
pceviously recognised in other oomprehensive &lcorne, it Is not rectassiOed to profit or toss. 
However. y,flen a debt inv.estmeni 81 f91" value through other comprehensive income Is 
derecognised, the gain or toss reoognised In other comprehensive income is reclassified from 
equity to profit or loss as a rec:la:ssffication adJU$tment. 

Debi i111strum1H1ts that are subsequently measureo at amortised oosl or at fair value 1hrotlgh other 
comprehensive income are subject to impairment 

The C6mmittee of Management of ihe Branch determined the existing fint:incial assets 8$ at 1 July 
2018 based on the facts and circums1ances O~t were present and determined tha1 the inltl'al 
application or AASB 9 had the following effect 

Iha Branch's investments in equtty instrum ents not held fOJ trading that were previously 
etas.sifted as available.fOf,sale financial au.ets a.,d were miwsured at fair value have been 
d9$igt1atoel as at rair value lhrou:gh profit and kiss. 

&lanclal assets as held-to-maturity and loans end receivables that were meas-ured at 
am ortised cost c:on1inue to be measured at amortised cost under AASB 9 3S they 31e: held to 
oolleet conlu1c-tual cash fl<>-w& and lhesa cash nows consist solely or pa)1TI.enh> of principal and 
interest on lhe princfpaJ amooot o~ta.nding; and 

financial as.:sets meru;u18d at fait value through p,oflt or toss (AASB 139) are still measured as 
such under AASB 9. This note contain$ a table 1ha1 s.hows the eff-ect or cl3:5Sffication of the 
floanclal assets upon lnltial applicalkln. 
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UNITED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 1 Summary of s ignlfleant aec.ountlng poticie:S (Continued) 

1.4 New Australian Accounting Standard& (Continued) 

OisclO<Sure: Initial application of AA.SB 9 (con1Inued) 

Impairment 
As per AASB 9, an expected credit loss model is appllad, not an incurred credit kiss modal as p8' 
the previous standard applicable {AASB 139), To reflect changes in credit r isk, this O:KPGieled 

credit loss mOdlll roqu~as 1110 Branch 10 accoUllt for expected credi1 losses siooe initial 
reoogl'litiOl'l 

AASB 9 also dotermiJ'IO:$ tha1 a loss allowance- for expected credit loss be recognised on debt 
investments subsequenUy measured at amortised cost or at fofr value through other 
comprehensive Income, lease recetvables, contrac1 as$ets, loan oommitmenlS and llnanclal 
guruantee contracts as the Impairment provision would apply to them. 

H the eredlt risk on a ftnarlclal lnswment did not show significant change siooe fnitia1 recognition. 
an &xpec.ted credit loss amount equal to 12-mooth expec1ed credit lossG$ are used. ~,ever, a 
loss allowance is recognised at an amount equ:al lo the lifetime expected ctedrl loss If the credit 
riSk on that financial Instrument has increased signfficantty since initial rocognltlon. or if the 
lnsttument ls an acquired credit~lmpaifed financial asset 

A simple approach ls followed In rel;ttion to trade receivables as the kiss allOwMce Is measured 
at llfetlme expected credit '°"· Given that the only financial asseis to whk:h the lmpairmoot 
provision a,pplles are trade and other receivables. the Branch uses the simplified approach and 
recoglllses llfeUme expected credit 10$$. This change in approach did not m.ateriafty Impact the 
expected provision and as suoh no 3djusrmen1 was made. 

The oonsequentlal amendments to AASB 9 have also resulted in more extensive disclosures 
abOut the Branch's exposure '° credit risk in the oonsoudated financial statements. 

C&asslficatlon and measuremeni of financial liabilities AASB 9 det8tmlnes that the measuremen1 
of flnaoclaJ liabilities and also the cJassification relates to changes in ttie fair value designsted as 
FVTPL. attnDUtable to changes in the credit risk. AASB 9 lurthcr ~ates that the movement in 1he 
fair value of financial liabilities that is attribU1ab1e to changes in the credit risk of lhal liability needs 
to be shown in other oomprehensive income unl&ss the offec.l of the recognition constitutes 
acc01Jnlin9 mismatch in profit or loss. (;hanges in fair value lo relatloo to the fioanciBI liebiJity's 
c:tedlt risk a:re transferred 10 retained earnings 'Mien the f..,Mclal tia.bllity Is derecognised and ~ 
reclassified through profit or loss. AASB 139 requi:res the (air vatue amoun1 of the chan9e of the 
financfel liability designated as at FVTPL to be p-.resented In ptofit or loss.. 

Apar1 irom the above, the application of AASB 9 has had no Impact on the dassification and 
meas1.1rement of the Branch's financial liabilitiM; 
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UNITED VOi CE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEO) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note1 Summary of significant aecountlng pollcles (Continued) 

1.4 New Australhm Accounting St3ndards (Continued) 

DisclOtSure; Init ial apptlc-,tlon of AASB 9 (conlJnuod) 

The following ltlble represents the e1Dssi11calloo and measurement of financial assets and 
financial fiabilities under AASS 9 and AASB 139 at the date of lnltial application. 1 July 2018. 
There !hes been net change to the carrying value of the Branch's financial assets. 

AASB 139 0",..inal AASB9New 
Financial Assets 
Current and non-current 
Accounts recelvablo and Loans and recei\/Bbles Financial assets at amortised 
other debtors lamottised cost\ cost 
Cash and cash equivalents Loans and ,eeelvabl.es Flnancia1 as~ts at amortised 

l on><><lised cost\ COSt 
Held lor trading non- Financial assets al fair value Financial as.sets at fair value 
Gleriva1Jve financial a:ssets lhroul'.'lh " '0tit or loss throu....._ .... ofit and loss 
Usted investments - shares Available.for-sale fina,nclal Financial assets at fair valu& 
in r~ted companies/ lis1ed asset, through olher comprehensive 
managed irwes1ment income 
schem,es 
Govemmenl and fixed Held-to--matul'ity Fmanclal assets a! amortised 
interest securities costs 

Financial liab ilities 
Current and non•c.u.rrent 
Acx:o1¥1ts payable and other Amortised cost Fmancial liabilities ot 
""'''ables amortised costs 
BorrovMgs Amortised costs Fmanclal .. bllltles at 

amortised eost 

The Br.anch have elec1ed 10 dasslfy financial assets lhat were pc'8\ll0usly categorised es awilabte 
for sale finanoiru asset• &S at faft value through imfit or lou at Ill• dalo of liufull a151>1iM66n of 
MSB9. 

This change has resulted in an amount of $145,983 {refer Note 30} belng- fecorded In lhO profit 
and loss refher than through Other C0t11prehef'lsive fncome. The 8'3tlch has el&cted t.o apply 
AASB 9 retrospectiveJy and Ma result. an amount of $37,634 has been recordad in lho profit and 
loss fOli the 30 June 2018 financial year. 

As the reserve for financial assets is no lo~er relevant fot the Branch under AASB 9, the 
Committee of Management have elected to roll the exis6flg reserve Into R&.talned Earnings in the 
current year. 

No other carrying amoonts have been amended- as a result of the appUcatlon of AAS8 9. No other 
aoeoi.J11ting standard has been adopted earlier u,~., the application date stated In the s1.andard, 
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UNITED VO!CE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAi. STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting poficies (Cont inued) 

1.4 New Au.stn,illan Accounting Standa.rds (Co nUnuod) 

Future Australian Accounting Standards Requirements 

• AA.$8 1058 Income of Not-for•Prolit Entilioos (AA.SB 1058) and AASS 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customer$ (AASB 15) 

AASB 1058 clarifies and slro~fles the incO'ffle recog!Vlfon requirements that apply to noHo­
pr,,fil (NFP) enlilie;, in oonjlA'lcilon wilh AASB 15 Revenue from Con~Pcts wilh Ooslomess, 
Tllese Standards supef'Sede all the Income irecogoltlon requirements relating to prlvat,e seci°' 
NFP entiiies, and the majOfity of income r,ecognil ion requirements relating to pubfir;: sec10f 
NFP entities, prevJously In AAS8 1004 Conlrlbutlons. 

Under AASB 1058, the tfmlr.g or tncome recognition depends on whether a NFP ka~sactlon 
gives rlse to a l iability or other performance obligation (a promise to lransfer a good or 
service), or a conttlbutlon by owners, related to an asset (such as cash or anolhes asset) 
roceived by an entity. 

This Sta:'ldard applies when a NFP entity en ters into transactions where the consideration to 
acquire an asset is significantly iess than thle fair value of lhe asset plfnclpalty to enable tho 
en:tity to further its objectives. In the letter ease. the entity will recognise and meast1re the 
asset a1 fair value in occordance with the applkable AustraJil)n Acc:ounting Standard (e,g, 
AASB 116 Prop<>rty, Planl and Equipment). 
Upon initial recognition of the asset, AA-SB 1058 reqtilres the entity to consider whether any 
other nnal"IClaJ statement elements (catted 'telated amount&') shoukl be recogni&ed, such as: 

Conlribllllons, by ownOtS: 

Reveoue, or a contract dabmty arising from a contract with a customer: 

A tease llabl.1ity; 

A financlal Instrument: or 

A provision. 

These retaled amouoIs will be accounted f0t In aocordance w\lh the applicable Ausltaflan 
Aooounling Standard. 

The Branch is yet 10 uru:fe~ke a detailed 8$Sessment of 1he impoct of AASS 1058 af"KI AASB 
15. However, based on the Branch's preliminary asse$smenl, the Sandards are not e xpected 
to h ave a material impacl on the lransacJions and balances recognised in the iin~cial 
s1a1emeots- when it is first adopts for lhe year ending 30 June 2020. 
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UNITED VOCCE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Nott 1 Summary of significant accounting por:icies (Continued) 

1,4 New Australlan Accounting Standards (Cont.lnued) 

• AASB 16: Leases {applicabJe lo annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
21)19) 

When effective, thls Standard wlll replace the curroot account!ng req\Jirements appliicable to 
teases In AASB 117: Leases and related Interpretations. AASB 16 introduces a single lessee 
accounting model th.at eliminates the requirement for leases. to be classlfied as operating ot 
rtnance leas.es. The main changes introduoed by the new Standard indlde: 

recognition of a right-to--.is& asSfJ.'I end liability for alJ leases (excluding short-term leases 
with les-s. !flan 12 months of'tenure and leases .reladng to low-value asse1s); 

depreciation of right-,~se 8"S!lelS in fine whh AASB 116: Property, P1ant ancf Equipment 
In p(Ofll °' !Oss and Ul'IWW'lding of the liability in principQI and interest components: 

varJab!e loasa payments that dep81'1d on an Index or a ia.!e are included in the initial 
measurement of the Jease liability using the index °' rate at the commencement dste; 

by applying• pn>elieal l!J(pedient. a lessee is permitted 10 eleci no1 u, separa:e non-lease 
components and instead account fot all <:OmpoMnl'S as a lease; and 

eoditfonal Cfl$Clos.-ure <eQuirements, 

The lransitionaf PfOvisions of AASB 16 eilow a lessee to ei1her retrospec:tlvefy eppty the 
Sten<la.rd to comparatives In fine wfth AASB 106: Accounting PoJic:ies, Changes In Accounting 
Es:t.nates and Errots or 25erecogni the cumula!ive effect of retrospective applicatioo as an 
adjustment to opening equity on the <late of Initial application. 

The Committee of Managemen1 does not believe Lho effec:ss of MSB 16 'MIi .signlflcanuy 
affect the Branch. 
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UNITED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE VEAR ENOED 30 JUNE 2019 

Noto 1 Summary of significant accounting policlos. {Conlinuod) 

1.5 Revenue 

R<tv"eooe is m.e-asuted at the: fair value ol th.e consideration receiVGd or ,ooelvable. 

Rewnue from subscrt1)tioos Is aocountcd '°' 011 an acctual basis and JS recOC'ded as rev-enue ~n 
the yea r lo which it relates.. 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when. the risks and rewards of ownersh.ip have 
been transferred to the buyer. the entity retatns no managerial lnvolvemoot or effective control 
over (he goods. the revenue and lransaclion costs incurred can be rellabfy measured, and U is 
probable that the economic benefits assocf.ated with the transaetlon wrn Row to the enh'ty. 

Oooati'.on Income ls recognised when II Is received, 

Reoeivabtes for 9oods tlfld seMCeS. whidl have 30 day telms, are recognised at 1he nominal 
amoun-15 due less any impairment allowance account Collectability of debts is revi8'o\'Od a1 end of 
the teP:Or1ing period. AAowsnces are made when collectabilfty of 1he clebl is no longer prob:able. 

lnteres-1 revenue is recognised on an 8ccrual basis using the effecilve interest metnod, 

Rental revenve from opereGng 'eMes ls recognised on a straJght.frne basl$ over the term of the 
reJevant lease. 

1.6 G.ains 

Sale of assets 

Gains and losses from disposal of assets-are recognised when oontrol of the asset haS passed to 
the buyer. 

1,7 Ci3pitaUon foM and ltvie.s 

Capitai ion fees and levies are recognised on an eocrual basis and recorded as a revenue end/or 
~xpense In lt'le year to which it ,eiat01,;, 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BR,ANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting polfoies (Continued) 

1.8 Emplo-yee benefits 

A liability is recognised for booelit$ ~n,an9 io employees in respect of wa~es and salaries, 
annual leave, Song service leave and termination benefits when it is probable 1ha1 settlement will 
be required and they e.re capable of betng measured reliably. 

Uabili1fes for $horHerm employee benefit$ {as. de.fined in AASB 119 Employee Beneflfs) and 
termlnefion benefits which are expected to be settled within twelve months of fhe end of reporting 
period are measured at their nominal amounts. The nominal amount is cala.Jlated with feQ,ard fo 
the rates expected to be paid on sel'tfement of the liebilm', 

Other long-term employee benefits which ate e;xpected !o be settled beyond twelve months are 
measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the reporting 
unl1 in respect of services provided by employees up to reporting date. 

Payments to denned co-ntributlOn retirement benefit plans are recognised a&; an expenso wtien 
emP'ovees t\ilve rendered service entitfing them to the con1rib!Jtio0$. 

Provis.fen is made for separation end redundancy benefit payments. The repoliing unit recognises 
a provision tor tel"Minatlon as part of a broader' restructuring Ymen It has developed a detall-od 
formal plan for 1he terminationi,; and ha$ infonned lllose employees effected tt,et i1 wiD carry out 
lhe tennlnalions. A provfsion for voluntary tctmlnatlon Is recognised ~en the empto)!'ee has 
accepted tile offer of te1mination. 

1.9 Loasos 

Operating !ease payments are expensed on a stndght-llne basis which Is represenuuive of the 
pattem of benefits derived from the leased assets. 

Rental revenue from operating leases i$ recognised on e $1raighH ine basis over lhe temn of the 
relevanl lease. Initial direc;.1 «isis incurred in negotleWlg and amlnging an operaling lease are 
$tided to fhe carrying amount of the leased assel snd recogni-sed on a straight-fine basis over the 
lease term. 

1.10 Cash 

Cash l:s recognised al 11.s nomln31 amount Cash af'ld cash equlvalen1s Tncludes cash on hand, 
deposhs he4d at call with bank, O(hor short-te,m highly liquid lnvesb'l\eots with 0tlgfnal maturity of 
3 monltls 0< less thal ore readily convertible to known amounts of cash and sut>ject to Wlsignlficant 
risk of changes Ira value and baJ'\k overdrafIs. Bank overdrafts are shown within shoort•lenn 
bortowlngs In currenr l!abllllles on the statement ,of financial poslUon. 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO VHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting policies {Continued) 

1.11 Flna:nclal Instruments 

Financii;il assets and financial l:iabilities are recognised when lhe Branch becomes a party to the 
contractual provi:sklns of the instrument. 

1.12 Financial assets 

Initial recognition end Measurement 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured et amortised 
oosf, fair value throogh othec comprehensive ill0Dme {OCI), qr fair value throvgh profit or loss. 

The clas-sfflcation of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the finsnctal asset's 
contractual cash flow characteristics and lhe Branch's bosir.ess model for managing them With 
the e.x-oeplion of trade receivables that do not ccw,tain a significant financing coll"lponenl, the 

Branch initiaJly measures a financial asset al its fair value plus. in the case of a financial asset not 
at fair va1ue through profit or loss, transaclion oo:sts. 

In ordar for a financial asset to be clessffied and measUJed at emonised 00s1 or fair value through 
OCI, It needs to give me to cash Ro•#$ lha1 ate ·sotely payments of principal and lnte(e:M .. (SPPI) 
on tho principal amount outstanda'lg. This assessment is referred to as the SPPt test and is 

parformod ~• an instrumonl lovtl. 

The Branch's business mo<Sel for managing f,nancial assefs refers to how it manages its financial 
as-sEl:ts in order !o gene.at& cash flows. lhe busjness modet determines whether cash nows will 
tesu1t from coJIGC:ling conlfactual cash Rows, Selling the financial assets, or bOth. 

Purchases or sales of flnanc:iaJ assots IIJat roquiro dolivery of as.sets within .a time frame 
eslabli:shed by regulatiol\ or convonHon In the mark8t place (tegular way ttados) a,e rec,ognlsod 
on the trade. date, I.e., the date that the Branch commits to putchase ot sell the asset 

s·ubs.qoent moasuromont 

For purposes of slt>sequent measuremenL fln.oBCia} assets .w clas:sir,ed in nvc categories: 

• (Other) financial assets at amortised cosi 

• (Other) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

• tnvestments In equity Instruments designated at fab' value through other comprah/M'lsl"' 
income 

• (Other) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

• (Olher) financial assets designated al fair value through profit or toss 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIN UED) 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting potlcies (Continued) 

1.12 Flna,nclal assots (conllnutd} 

Financial assets at amortised co,ts 

The re-porting unit measures financial assets 3t amort%ed cost If both of the fO,low!ng oondltions 
are met: 

• The financial assat is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial essets in 
oc-der lo col!eqt contrectu~ c~Pl fklv~ ~g 

• TM contractual terms or the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ore 
sofely payments of principal and intere$1 on the principal amount outstanding 

Financial sssets at amortised cost are subsequently meastJred using lhe effective inter6st (EIR) 
me1hod and 8re subject to lmpalrmenL Gains and tosses aro recogni:sGd ln prorrt or loss when the 
asset is derecognised, modified or lmp~lted. 

The Br anch's financial assets ei am·ortised c0$ll Includes trade receivables and loans to- related 
parties.. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or Joss (fncludlng dos'9natcd) 

Fanancial assets at fair value through p,ofi1 o r loss 1nclude financlot a-.s:sets held for trading, 
rsnanciaJ assets designated upon initial reoognl1ron at fair value thtough profit or loss, oc financial 
assets mandatorily required to be measvred at fair value. Flnanctar assets are classified as held 
for tramlg if they are acquired for the purpose of selllng or repurchasing in the near term. 
Derivatives, inducfmg separated embedded derivatives, are a)so classified as held for tracflng 
unless they are designated as effective hedging insiruments. Financial assets wlth cash flows that 
aro not solely payments of principal and interest are claasified and measured at fair value through 
profit or k>ss, irrespective of the business modej, NotWithstanding the oriterla for debt instruments 
to be classified al amortised cost °' a1 f8U vahle throu9h OCI, as described above, debt 
instrumanls may be designated at fair value through profit or los.1 on initial recognition if doing so 
elimrlales, or significantly reduces, an accoon.ting mismatch. 

Financial aS$Ot$ at rait value through profi1 Of loss are carried in 1he $tatement of financial position 
at fai.r value. with net changes in fair value recognised in profil Of Joss.. 
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UNIT!aO VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTiaS TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 1 Summary of sign Incant acc::ountlng polieies (Continued} 

1, 12 Financial MS-et& (continued) 

Dorocognltion 

A flnaraclal assel i.-s derecognis&d when: 

• T1he rights to receive <»Sh flows from lhe as.set have expired or 

• Tme Branch has transrerred its rights to receive cash flows from the 3SSet or has osst.l'ned an 
obllg;:ttion to pay the received cash flows In full without mat1Nlal cktlay to a thil'd party under a 
1p.a$s-through' arcangemcnt; and ollhor. 

a) Tho Sraneh has ttans1erred subs1antiaUy a\J the risks and rewards of the asset. or 

b-) the Branch has neither transferred nor. retained substantially an the risks and rewards of 
the a:sset. bU'I has transferred control o1 the asset. 

Wheel the Brandl has transferred fl$ rights to receive cash Rows from an asset or has entered 
into a pess-chrougti arrangemen1. It evaJuales ff. and to what extent. II has retained IJ'le rfsks and 
rewards of ownership. 

When it has neither transferred nor retained substaolial y-all ot lhe risks and rewards. of I.tie asset, 
nor transferred contro! of the asset. the Branch oonllnucs to recogl\fse the 1ransfe<red as:set to the 
externl of its continuing involvement together vA th associated tlabllity. 

Offsetting 
Financial .:issels and financial li8:blfities arc offset and the net amount ls toported In the stalemanl 
of fin3n(:ial position if toere Is 8 currenJJy enforieeable legal right to offset the recognisad amounts 
and fhere is an intention to settle on a net basis. to reallse the assets and settte the liabltlti&S 
s irm.ltaneousfy. 

lmpBlrment 

(i) Trade receivables 
For tf'3de receivables that do OOl have a slg:nificant financing component. the Branch :applies a 
simpr-tfied 3pproach In caJcul3tfng expect~d credit kisses (ECLt) whieh roquir8-s lifelime ;expected 
credil losses to be recognised rrom Initial ,ecognition of lhe receivables. 

Therefore, ltle Branch does not track Change& in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss 
allow;0noe based on lifetime E.Cls at each <Gporting date. The Branch has e·stablished a provision 
metri:x lh81 is based on its. hlstorical crecll1 10$$ txpcrt-cnco, adjU'tlOd for fotwarcl 4 1o0klng factors 
spectflc to the <febtors and the eoonomlc onvlronmenl 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 1 Summary of s ignificant accounting policlo.s (Continued) 

1.12 F"lnaoclal assets (continued} 

(li) Debt iMtruments other than lrado r(ICOiv.1blos 

For a.11 debt Instruments other than trade receW8bles and debt instruments not held at tair vatue 
through profit or loss, 1he Branch recognise, :en al!QW8t'lce for expected credit los.5$s &Jsing the 
goocwal approach. ECL.s are based on the difference between 1he contractual cash flows due in 
accotoance with lhe contract and au the cash flows that the Brnnch exp8Cls to t'eceive, 
discounted al an approximation of the original effective interest rate. 

ECls are recognised in two si39es: 

• Where there has not been a significant lruxease In credit rfsk since initial recognition, ECLs 
3Je provicled for credit losses from possible default evoots within the next 12:*months (a 12 .. 
month ECL). 

• Where there has been a sjgn.fficanl increB'Se in credit risk since initfal recognition, a loss 
allowance ls requited ror credit kl$Se5 expected over the remaining llf8 of lhe debt 
itrospocHve or the llmlf\9 or the default ca llfetlme ECL), 

The 81anch considers a fin:,ncial asse1 In default when contrac1ual payment& are 60 days pas! 
csue. However, In oerto:in c3ses. the B~nch may 8lso consider a financial asset to t>o In dofat.111 
woo11 Internal or external lnfom1atlon Indicates 1ha1 Ille Branch is unlikely lo recelva 1he 
outstanding contl'3Ctual amounts In tun. A financial asset is written off when there Is no 
reasonable e.lCpectatlon of recovering the contractual cash flows. 

1.13 Ffnancial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classfrted at ltlltlal recognition. at amortised CO$t unless or at fair vs!ue 
through proftt or klS$. All financial llabllltles are recognised lnitialty tu fair value and, in the case of 
financial liabilities at amortlSOO cost. net of directly attributable lroll$8Clion costs. 

Subs.aquont Moasuroment 

FlnanGlal llabllltle, at falr value through prof,t or loss (including designated) 

Anancial liabilities a1 fair value 1hrough pcofitor loss include financial llablJiUos hekl for t<adlng and 
flnallCi~ liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair valu~ thtough p,ofit or loss, 

Gains >Of" losses on liabilities held fOf' trading are recognised in profit or IO$S. 

Flf'lancial liabilities designated upon initial , eoognitio,, at (air value through profit or loss are 
desigRB?ed 81 the initial date of reoognition, end on!y if the criteria In AASB 9 are satisfied, 
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UNrTEO VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO T HE ANANCIA L STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDEO 30 JUNE 2019 

No te 1 Summary of slgnlflcMl accountfng potlcln {Continued) 

1.13 Financ ial Liabilities (contlnued} 

Financial liabifities at amortised cost 

Mer initial recognition, lrade payables and interest-bearing loans and borrov.ing, are 
subSequenUy measured a! ernoff;ised cost using !he EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profrt or Joss 'M"len the liabili'ties are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amor11&ation proi;;esli, 

Amortised cost is caloulated by taking into account any discount or premium on aoquisition and 
fee:s ot costs lhat ate an integral part of the EJR. The EIR amortisation Is included as fmanoe 
oosts in profit or loss. 

Dorecognltion 

A tln.anclaJ Uablllty is derecognised when the obligation under the liabiRty is disd'larged or 
cancell'ed Of expir&S. When an existing fi:ne.ncia l liability is replaced by another fsom the same 
Cender on substantially different terms, or tbe· terms of an existing liabiity are substantially 
modified, such an exC:hango or modification ls treated as the derecognilion cf the original liability 
and the tecog.nltlon of a naw liabi!ily. The difference in the respective carrying amooots is 

rocogolsed In ~rofil or Jost. 

1.14 Contingent UabUIUcs and Contingent Asul'S 

Contingent liabilities and contingent fJssets are nol reoognised lo the St3temen1 of Financial 
Posilion but ere reported in the relevant notes. They may Grise from uncertainty ~ 10 the 
existence or a l ability or a$set or represent an existing fiabllfty 0( assei in respeol of 'M"lidl the 
amount cannot be reliabfy -measured. Contingent asset, are disclosed when settlement Is 
probab-fe but not virtualty certain, and conting·ent liabilities are disdosed when settlem ent is 
greater than remote. 



UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE!,IENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting poli'A:iOs {Contlnuod} 

1.15 Plant and Equipment 

Asstt Recognition Tl,rHhold 

Purchases of land, buildings, plant and equipment ere recognised initially at oost in the Statement 
of Fmanclal Position. The initial cosl of an asset includes an estl.mate of the oost of dismantling 
and removing the item end restoring the site on \tJhich it is located. 

Revaluations-Land and Buildings 

Following initial recognffion al cos1. Janel and building$ are carried at fair vatue tess subsequent 
eocum u!ated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are perlonned wi1h 
sufficient frequency such that the carrying emoont of assets do not Otffer materially from those 
that would be delem,ined u:sing feir values as al ·the reporting date, 

Revaluation adjustments are made on a class basis. Any revaluation increment is credited to 
equity under the heading of asset revaluation reserve except to lhe ex.tent lhat it reversed a 
pr8'\lious revaJuation decrement of the same as-set class that was previously recognised in the 
surpfusldefict1. Revalua1ion decrements for a class of assets BJe recognised directly in lhe profit or 
loss except to the ex.tent lhat thl}y reve~e a preW]us rev~luation increment for lhat class. An,y 
oocumulated deprecialion as et the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying 
amount of lhe as.set and lhe asset is restated to the revalued amount 

OtJprtN:laUon 

Oeprecla~ plant 3nd equipment assets are 'M'itten..off to 1helr estimated resklual vatu·es ove< 
their estimated useful tlfe using, 1n all cases, the strafght lln.e method of depceciation, Oepreciatron 
rates (useful Uves), residual vatoes and methods are reviewed at e.ach repor6ng date and 
necessaiy adjustmen1s are reoo90lsed in 1he curren1, or current and future repo11ing periods, as 
•ppropr!ote. 

Depreciation rates spplytn9 to each c lass of depreciable asset are based on the followill9 useful 

lives: 

Buildings 
tnvestment properties 
Motor ,.,,ehides 
Fixnilure and equipment 

Derecognition 

2019 2018 
40 years 
40yeara 

4.4 yesrs 
2,5 - 40 years 

40 years 
40 years 
4.4 years 
2.5 - 40 years 

All item of plant and equipment ;s 33ereoogni:zed upon disposal or when no future economjc 
benefits ate expected from Its use or dtsposal. Any gain or loss artst119 on the dJspos31 °" 
relirement of an Item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between 
the ~ ,es proceeds and the canying amount of the asse1 and Is reco9nised In the profit and loss.. 
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UNITED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO T HE ANANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 1 Summary of significant accounting polf.cle$ (Continued) 

1.16 Investment P,oporty 
Investment p,opertie$ ere initially recognised at oost including any ticquisUion costs and 
subseQ1Jen1ly stated el fair value al each balance date. Fair value is b"ased on ltle latest 
indepefldont valuation adjusting for capital expenditure and ca,pi1siisstion .and amortisation of lease 
inccndves slooe the date of the independent valuation report. Ally gain or Jo$$ arlSaOg f rom a 
Change lo f&ir value is recogni.sed in the profit or loss, in the period. Th& valuation of lnve$tment 
ptopel"ties Is a key ~rea of aoooooting estirnatfon and- Judgement for the Bfaoch. 

&bseGuern rogs 

Subsequent oosts ate recognises in the carrying amount of an inveslment p<opcrty If It Is probable 
that the future economic benefits embOd"ced within t~e item v,ill flow to the Blanch and the cost can 
be me~sured reliably. All olher costs are recognised in the profit°' lo$$ Man expense as incurred. 

QetecpqnfJjon ol investment prppttty 

An invesimenl property is derccogrised upo-n disposal or when the Investment pr,operty is 
peffllanently whh(:lrawn from use and no future economic benefits ere expected from the ~sal. 
Any gain or loss arising on demoognltlon or the property (calcoJal&d as the differeooe betv1een the 
net dfs.posal proceeds and the earry?ng amo111t of the asset) is Included In the profit or loss in the 
period in whkh the property is dereoognised. 

1.1 7 lmpairrment of non•flnanc~I 8S$e-ts 

All a:S&ets ate assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period to the extel'lt that there 
is an Impairment trigger. Where indications of S'l"lp,alrment exist. the asset's rec:ovefable amount l:s 
Mtirnated and en impairment adj_ustment made If the asset's recoverable amount Is less. than It~ 
carl)'lng amouot. 

The recoverable amount of an asset i$ the higher or lts feir value less costs of dispos311 and its 
value In use. Value i.n use is the present vatutJ or the future cash flO'.\•s expected to be deri,..ed 
from the 8$Set. Where the future economic bertefit of an asset is not primarily dependent on the 
asset's abifrty to generate Mure cash Rows. al\d the asset would be replaced If the 8t3111Ch were 
depn\;,ed of the ~sset, its value in use is takan to be fts depreciated replacement coot. 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO T HE FINANCIA L STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE VEAR ENDEO 30 JUNE 2019 

Note1 Summary of significant accounting policies {Continued) 

1.18 T-,xa-tfon 

The Branch is exempt from lnoome cax under sec::tlon 50, 1 of the Income T~x Assessment Act 
1997 hcwvever still has obUgatlon for Fringe Benefits Tex (FBT) and the Goods and Services Tax 
(GST). 

Revenues. expen5-es 3fld ass.els are reoog:nised ne1 of GST except: 

• WM'6 IM 41l\0Ur'il of GST lntufi'M is !IOI fe65vA/llbl4 froM IM Australian Ti!J(;l!IO<\ Offie6: ~M 
• for receivables and payables. 

The net amooot of GST recoverable from. or payable to, the taxation aulhortty is induded as part 
of receivables or payables, 

C3sh ffows are fncluded In lhe statement of castl nows on a gross basis. The GST component of 
cash flows arising from investing and financing 3Cti\ltties which is recoverable from, or payable to, 
the Australian T axatlon Office is dassified within operatlng cash flov.,. 

1.19 Fair value moasuremont 

The Branch measures fma.nclal instruments, such as, financial asset es at fair value through the 
p<of!t and 1-oss. availat>Je for sale flnandal a:ss,ets. end non-financi~ esse¼: suc:h as lend a-nd 
buildings and inves1men1 properties, aJ fair valve at each balanoe sheet date. Also, fair values of 
fim:mciel instrvmenls measured at amortised cost are disclosed in Noie 15. 

Fair value is the price tha1 would be recerYed to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an 
orderly trnnsacUon between market participant$ a1 !tie measurement date. The fair valve 
measurement is based on the presUf1lplion that the transaction to sell the asset or lransfer the 
liabiJity·takes place either. 

• Im the princfpal ma,ket 10, the assat or liability, or 

• In the absence of 3 prlnclp,a! ma.fket. in 1he most edvanl&geovs m~e-1 for the assel or 
liablkly 

Tho principal oc tho most advantageous market must be accessible by 11'1& Branch. The fa1r value 
of an asset or a tiablllty is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing lhe asset or liability, assuming that matko1 partietpants act in theft oconomtc best 
int&f0$L 

A 1air value meast.trement ot a non•financi.a! asse.1 takes itlto account a marl<.ot par1idpaors abllity 
to gentuate. econornk beneflls by using lha asset in its. highest and best use or by sell.Ing It to 
~oothef markGt participant thal would uso the 3"01 in il$ h.igh8:$l and bo:s-t U$G. 

Tho Branch UM!$ vah.ratfon technlqu&S inat i!lte appropriate In lhe circumstances aod for 'MIich 
.sufficia:nt data are available to measure fair value, maximisiog Iha uso or relevant observable 
inpulS and minimising u1a us0 or ur.cbsorvable Inputs_ 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 20 19 

Note 1 Summa,y of significant accounting pollcl-os (Contlnuod) 

1.19 Fair value measurement (continued) 

All assets and 6abililies for which fair V3lue ts measured or disctosed In the r10ancial sta'lements 
are categori$'.ed within the fair value hierarchy. descnb&d as foUows. based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the f3ir vatve me3$1.itcment as a whole: 

• Level 1-0uotcd {ut'ladjusted) market prices in active markets for identical ~ssets or 
liabilitie$ 

• l.;evtl 2- Ve~atlcn technlqu&o IOI whldl 11\& loWl>tl klv•I input lhAl is significanl to Ille fair 
"laluo measu,ement is directty or indirectly observable 

• Leve.I 3-Valuation techniques (Of whic;h the lowes1 level inpul that ls slgn.lfk:ont to ttle fair 
vatue measurement Is unobseivatile 

For &S--sets and liabilities that are recognised rn llt'le financial statomonts on a recurring basis, the 
Bmnch determines whether transfers have ooet.1rred between l evels In lhe hierarchy by re­
assessing categorisation (based on the lowm '8vel lnpot lhal Is slgnfficant to lhe fair value 
measu:rement as a whole} at the elld of each rep,ortlng oe,IOd. 

extem;al valuers ate involved for valuation of significanl assets, such as land and buildimQ$ and 
investmont properties. Selection cri teria include martc.et knowledge. reputatton., ln~peodcnce and 
'Mlether professional standards are maintained. For 1he purpose of fair value dltelosores. the 

Branch has d~tennined classes of assets and r1abillties on the basis or the nature, charaeteristl~ 
and rls.k$ of !he asset or liability and the level of the ftllr vatue hierarchy. 

1.20 Going concern 

The Branch i$ not reli:mt oo tile agreed flnandal support of aoother reporting unit to continue on a 
going concern ba.$-is. 

The Br.aoch has not agreed to provide f!nanclal s.uppott to another reporting unrl to ensure they 
can oontinl.Je on a going ooncem basls. 

1.21 Government Grants 

Government grants are not recognised unbl there is reasonable assurance thet the Bra;nch wtH 
comply 'with lho conditions attaching ,o them a.nd that the grants will be received. 

Government grants are recognised in profi1 or loss on a systematic basis over lhe periods in 
which the Branch recognlsM as expenseg lho r,Jlated costs fOf 'M'lich the grants are intended 10 
comp~sate. Specifically , government grant$ whose prtnary condition Is 1hat tl'lc Branch should 
purdla:se, constn.-ct otherwise a,cquko non-cl.fl'rent as.sets a1e recognised as deferred revenue rn 
the statement or financial position and transferred to profi1 or loss on a: systematic and rational 
basis over the t.1seful lives of the related assi?ts. 

Government grants lha.t are receivable as compel'\&alion for expenses or losses already illQ)rred 
or fot the purpo~ of giving immediate financiaf suppo11 to the Branch wltti no Mute related costs 
are recognised in profit or kiss In the period in which they become receivable. 



UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE ANANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIIIIUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note2 Evonts after the reporting period 

On 30 August 2019. members of both the Natlooa:I Union of Wo«ers and United Voice voted to 
amalgamate ;and eteate the Uniled W~ers Union, A copy of toe dedaraUoos of the amalgamation ballol 
conducted b~ lhe Aus-tralian Electoral Commission are available at wov.fwc goy au&asts·Cerblons.­
Orders/maioe:case§t'urj,eg..y9,ce:oaUonal1113190-WOrkeCS:PC900Sed·800ilAAmal/on 

Under the proposed structure, all reporting units of the Nauonat Union of Workers {SOV) anti United Voice 
(108V) (with the eJ«lel)tiof> of the NaUon0I Council) aro 10 be abolished. Under the scheme, the iollowfng 
is to occur: 

1. Atl assets and liabifities of the Nallonal Union of WOtkers end United Voioe will be con:solid~ted 
Into 1he I.Jolted Voice- Nalio()31 Council. 

2. Untted' Volce- Natlonal Council ls 10 be renamed the United Workers Union, 

3. Officers of both the former National Union of Workers and United Voice \MIi be transferred into 
lhe nei.v offices or the Uf\ited Workers Union. 

4. Members of lf'le fotmer National Union of Wofkert and Uni led Voice wil beoome members 6f tlie 
United Wcwkers Union. 

5. Employees of the National Union of Workers end United Voice will become employees of the 
United WOfkers Union. 

A copy of the roles of the United Workers Union ~let, Include at ScheCule 5 the 1ransitionat matte,s IS 
avallable at www.anewunlon.om-aulblou/ 

Upon the amalgamation d0Ie 1ne United Worke<l! Union wlll commence operotlOI\$, ,_ltlmg ln tne 
existing National Union of Workers and Unlled Voice fe:porting units to cease opera:t:iions. 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAi. STATl:MENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note3 Income 

Note 3A: Investment Income 
lnteresl looome of deposits 
Interest illCQme on loans r&celvable - United Voice - We.stern 
Australia Branch 
ln\e<O$I income on loans rewlvablir Unllll<l VOit<! - Ou•enolano 
Investment portfolio investment lnoome 
Total Interest 

Note 38; Grants or donations 
Grants 
Donations 
Total grants or donations 

Note 3C: Prop,erty income 
Rental lflcome - Capet Street 
RenJ4d income - Orummond Street 
Total property income 

Noto 30: Otho:r revenue 
Sundry fncome 
Legal fee recoveries 
Gain on cevaluatJon or financial asse1s 
Gain on revaluation of investment properties 

38167 

2019 2018 

$ s 

528,527 557,554 

9,190 22.471 

61 ,204 44,183 
161,063 275,647 

759,984 399,855 

108,254 462,953 

108,254 462.953 

386,142 331,959 
78,284 80.319 

484,406 412.278 

79,437 136,201 
265,486 
145,983 37,634 

2 520 878 
3,011 1784 173,835 



UNITED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

2019 2018 

s s 
Note 4 Expenses 

Not• 4A: Employee expenses 
Holders of office: 

Wages and salartes 418,120 406,5a2 

Superat1riuatloo 54,659 61,227 

Leave 8nd Qi.her entitlements 69,329 67,760 

Other employee expenses 40,095 37,988 

Subtotal employee expenses holders of office 582.203 573,557 

Employees other than office holders: 

Wages aOO salari~ 4,720,208 4,323.236 

Superannuation 804,247 742,581 

Leave and other entitlements 513,790 641,993 

Sepa~tioo and redundancies 47,010 168.331 

Olher employee expenses •46,595 404,861 

Subtotal emp loyee expenses employeos othor th3n offlco 6,531,850 6,299,002 
holders 
Total omployec ex.pens.es 7,114,053 6,872,559 

Noto 48: lncflrect employment·costs 

Job- advertising 8,189 3,495 

Ecfvca!lon and s1aff training 23,504 31,268 

Entertalnmenl e.xpenses 13,826 8,678 

Moto, vel-.:::te expenses 51,398 41,045 

Staff amenflfes 11,131 14,755 

Staff uOOorm 2,996 6,444 

Total Indirect employment costs 111 ,044 105,685 

N-ott 4C: Affiliation fees 

Australian Labo, Party (VlctOtia) 82,080 78.722 
VldOfia Trades. Hall Council 118,364 116,182 

Batlarol Trades & Labour CounciJ 3,960 3,960 

Bendigo Trades .& Laboor Council 852 1,136 

Gee!ong Trades & Labo.Jr Cooocll 3.423 3,351 
GippSland Tr.ades & Labour COWlCil 927 927 

Goulbum Vat:ley Trades & Labour Council 245 546 

North East Soeder Trades & labour Council 1,920 1,920 

South West Trades & Labour Council 1,047 375 

Sunraysla Trades-& Labour Co...-icil 688 413 

Total affiliation fees 213,506 207,532 
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UNITeO VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

2019 2018 

s s 
Note 160 : Admlni.stration expenses 

General adml nistratlon e.x:pens&s 50,317 (9,843) 

OfAce equipment 6,623 6,887 

Posra_ge and couriers 22,909 19,259 

Printing and stationery 39,789 32.543 
Repairs and maintenance 418 

Telephone 40,478 4 1,378 

Total odmlnl$lratlon oxpontot 1§0,11§ 9Q,8~7 

Note 4E: Campaign costs 
C.mpalgn costs 357,539 249,400 

Tota l campaign CO$tS 357,539 249,4-00 

Note 4F: Communication eostt: 

Advenlslng 2,071 1 47,741 

Publications 9,132 8,419 

Totel communication co,ts 11,203 156,160 

Note 4G: OeiJ)f'eciation and amortisation 
Depreciat ion 

Building& 86,141 76,602 

Investment property 9,389 9 ,052 

Motor vehicles 18,188 10,805 

Furniture and equipment 104,,973 110 ,456 

Total depreciation 218,691 206,925 

Amortisation 
Total am0f11$atlon 

Total depreciation and amorti&ation 218,691 206.925 

Note 4H:Financ• cosl:S 

Bank chargt-s 14,133 14,650 

Con$1deratioo to employers for payroll deduc1ions 8,,008 11 ,5 11 

Insurance 87,257 19,9TT 

Investment r und chatges 19,883 28,471 

Total finance costs 129,281 74,609 



UNITED VOICE - VJCTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS !CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

2019 2018 

s $ 

Note 41: Grant, or donations. 

Grants: 

OQ11at.ions: 
Total paid ttnat were $1,000 or less 6,821 1,974 
Toi.I paid llhat exe<>e<le<I $1,000 184,250 5,000 

Total gr~mts or donations 191,071' 6,974 

Note 4J: Information technology CO$t$ 
Computer expenses 84,038 62,858 
Total Jnfonnallon cechno109y costs 84,038 62,SSS 

Note 4K: Legal and profouional C0$.lS 

Legal oosts: 104,083 188,721 
litigation 
Other l~al matte,s 20,053 6,488 

Accountancy fMs 5.420 
Audit fees 22,950 23,090 
AwardS and publications 9,256 2,133 

Project man39ement fees 16,020 

Consultancy fees 35915 26,660 
Total legal and professio nal costs 192,257 268,532 

Note 4L: Me-eting and conference costs 
Fees/ ~llowances 25,122 13,905 
Conference a.nd meeting G)q)e(IS&s 41,878 23,744 
Delegate conven1lon expenses 60,849 47,972 
Tnwel expenses 56 931 44.19~ 
Total meetjng and conference costs 184,580 129,814 

Note '1i1: Mlllmber costs 

Educalion and ~ainin9 expenses 17,613 4,039 
Insurance 17,809 

Total member costs 17 613 21,848 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO TliE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 4N: Property cost-s 
aeaning 
Electrlcl1y 
Insurance 

Rates and 13><es 
Repairs and maintenance 
Sundry expenses 
Total proper:ty cos.ts 

Note 40: Sus.tontatlon 
Uoltcd Voice - N.atfonal Council 
Total sustentation 

Note5 -Current Assots 

Note $A: Cash and Cash Equivalents 
cash at bank 
C3shon hand 

Total casl\ t11nd cash equivalents 

Note SB: Trade and Other ROCGiv.1blH 
Receivables from other reporting unsts 

United Voice - NatiOnal Councl) 

Less provision for doubtful debts (reporting units) 

Receivable from o ther ,.porting unit$ (net) 

Other receivables: 

Other t~de receivables 

Membef'Sllip fees receivabie 

tncome receivable on investments 

Total trade and other reeelvables (net) 

Provision for Doubtful Debts 

2019 

s 

75,925 
111,942 

9,407 
266,680 

96,679 
17029 

577,662 

958,180 

958,180 

633,104 

1,150 

634,264 

73,274 

73,274 

13,893 

173,~16 

110,713 

371,296 

2018 

s 

70,721 

85,139 
25,618 

240,621 

216,873 

35.318 

674.290 

1,006,489 

1.006.4119 

:384,088 

1,150 

385,238 

137,13 1 

137,131 

24,759 

84,660 

204,193 

450,743 

A provision is reoognised for doubtful debts when membership subscription fees owing has been given lo 
a third patty fo, oollectlon or v.tie,e full reooverabili1y is: unlikely. 



UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO 11'HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS \CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note SC: Financial assets 
ShM term bani< deposits 
Float rate no1es 
IFS m81lagea Investment portfolio {IFS) 
Loan l'eeeivable 

UoitOd Voice -Western Australia Branch 
United Voice - 0Ueeoslat1d Branch 

Tot.al financial assets 

Note 50: Other current assets 
Deposit$ 
S!Od< on halld (dothing) 
Prepayments 
Accruod Interest 

Total other current assots 

Note 6 Non-current As$ets 

Note 6A: Flna-n-c1al asscits 
Floolklg ra1e notes 
Loan recaiva ble 

United Voloe - Wes-tem Auslralia Branch 
United Voioe - Queensland Stanch 

IFS managed 1nves1menI portfolio (IFS) 

To tal financial assets 

2019 
$ 

8,977,730 
8,402,766 
4,008,192 

164,433 

21,553,121 

10,225 

97,278 
107,S03 

2018 

$ 

6 ,857,188 

100,000 

357,143 

7,314 ,331 

10.225 
24,347 

844 
87.758 

122,W2 

8,402,766 

164,433 
1,994,048 
3,629,391 

14,190,638 



UNITED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTl,,UEO) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 6B: La.nd and buildings 
Land and buildings 

At cost 
accumulated depreciation 

Total Land and buildings 

2019 
$ 

15.4-00,000 

Reconciliation of OpGning and Closing Balancos of Land and Buildings 

A• at i July 
Gro$S book v:elue 
Accumulated dopreciauon and knpalrment 

Net book val'ue 1 Juty 

Additioos; 

By purchase 
By transfer (from fumitU'8 and equipment) 

By fair \/all.JC gain 
Oep,eciatlon ,expense 
Disposals: 

Bysal& 

Net book vafue 30 June 
Net book v:irue as of 30 Juno reprosontod by: 

Gross book v.ak.Je 
Accumulated depreciation end impairment 

Net book v:il ue 30 June 

Valuation Details 

3,801,169 
(2,573,375) 

1,227,794 

428,443 
13,829,904 

(86,141) 

15,400,000 

15,400,000 

15,400,000 

2018 
$ 

3.801.169 

(2,573,375) 

1.227,794 

3,801,169 

(2,496.773) 

1.304.396 

(76,602) 

1,227,794 

3,801,169 
(2,573,375) 

1,227.794 

On 11 Ju!y 2018, the land and buildings al 117• 131 Capel Street, NOflh Me1boume was valued by Mr 
l homas Bl81'1cowe AAPI CPV and Mr Chris Smima'kos FAPI CPV of Jones Lang laSall,e AdviSOfY 
Sel'\fices Pty Ltd. The land and buildings were at $15 .400,000 on a highest and besl use. which was 
determined as cOf'l'lmercial olfl08 building {the assets current use). 

The Committee of Maoogement assessed the key assumptions within lhe valuaUon and determined that 
thfl lair value or the land and- building remains current at 30 June 2019. Therefore the Srru'lch had 
adopled lhis ._.alue at 30 JW'la 2019. 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note SC: Investment property 

Investment property - 62 Orummood Slteet, ca,1ton 
At cost 
~ccumulated deprooiation 

Total Investment property 

2019 
$ 

2,800,000 

2,800,000 

Roconc/flarlor, of Opening snd Closing Balances of investment propetty 

As at 1 July 

Gross book value 
Accumu1ated depraclallon and Impairment 
Net book value 1 J uly 

Additions: 
By purchase 
By fair value gain 

Oepreciatlon e><pense 
Disposals; 

By sale 

Net book wiluc 30 June 

Nel book value as ol 30 June represented by; 
Gross book value 
Aocumulated depreciation and impairment 
Not book value 30 June 

Valuatlon Details 

462,077 

(173,566) 

288,511 

2,520.878 

(9,389) 

2,800,000 

2,800,000 

2018 
s 

462,077 

(173,566) 

288,511 

462,077 
(164,851) 

297,226 

(9,052) 

288,511 

462,0TT 

(173,566) 

288,511 

On 11 October 2019 (effective 30 June 2019), Iha lnv.o,tment property located at 62 Drummond SIJeet, 
Cartton was valu8d by Mr Gabe Lindquist MPl CPV and Mr Chris Smirnakos FAPI CPV or Jones Lang 
LaSalle Advisory Services Pty Ltd. The land and bulldh1gs were valued at $2,800,000 on a highest and 
best use, wtiieh was determined as commerclal office building (the assets current use}. 



UNITED VOl,CE-VICTORJA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Noto 60: Mo-tor Vohiclo1i 
Motor vehicles: 

atoost 
accumulated depreciation 

Total molOf' vehtclos 

Roc011cJll:,tion of Opening tJnd CIO$ing Balances of Motor Vehicle$ 

As at 1 July 

Gross book vafue 

Accumutatod deptectatloo and impalrment 

Net book value 1 Juty 

Additions: 
By purchase 

Depreciation expense 

Disposals: 

By sale 

Not book val uo 30 Juno 

Net book val ue as of 30 June represented by: 

~ross book vakie 
Accumulated depreciation and fmpalrment 

Net book value 30 June 

4&'67 

2019 
$ 

120,106 

(58,455) 
61,651 

77,233 
(58,733) 

20,500 

65,744 

(18,188) 

(6,405) 
61,651 

120,106 
(58,455) 

61,651 

2018 
$ 

77,233 

(56,733) 

20.500 

77,233 
(45,928) 

3 1,305 

(10,805) 

20,500 

77,233 
(56,733) 

20,500 



UNITED VOi CE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 6E: Full'niture and equipment 

Fumitura and Equipment: 

a1 cost 

aceumu.!ated depreciation 
Total furniture a.lld equipment 

2019 
s 

551,308 

(279,254) 

272,054 

Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Bslances of Fumirure and Equipment 

As at 1 July 
Gross boOk value 
Accumutaiecl depredation and lmpainnent 

Not book val ue 1 July 

Addi1ions: 
Bypui'd'las.e 

Oep,edallon expense 
Disposals: 

Bysal<! 
By ~ansfer (to land or>d buildings) 

Net book value 30 June 

Net book viJue its of 30 Juno roprosontod by: 

Gross book value 

Accumulated depreciation and impainnent 

Net book vetue 30 June 

47/61 

1,661,247 
(935,209) 

726,038 

79,432 

(104,973) 

{428,443) 

272,054 

551,308 

(279,254) 

272,054 

2018 
$ 

1,661,247 

{ 935,209) 

726,038 

1,374,559 

(824,406) 

550,153 

286,351 
(110,466) 

726,038 

1,661,247 

(:935,209) 
726,038 



UNITED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

2019 2018 
$ s 

Note 7 Current Liabllltles 
Noto 7A; Trade payables 

Trade credit()('S and aicctuais 257,498 269,068 
Subtot-al trade> creditors 257,498 269,068 

Payables to other reporting unl1$ 

United Vo,ke - National Council 279,033 281 ,940 

United Vo4ce -Queensland Blanch and oontrolted entities 1, 1211 612 
Subtotal payables to other reporting units 280,159 282,552 

Tot.al trade payables 537,657 551 ,620 

Settlement is. usually made within 30 days. 

Note 7B: Other poyables 
Legal costs 

Litigation 4,749 9,193 
O!har legal matters 2,505 

GSTpayabla 1ea,a10 161,215 
Income received in advance 171,784 42,998 

°""'' 11,550 11,550 
Total other payables 383,798 244,956 

Total other payables are expected to be settled in: 

No mo,e than 12 months 3$3,798 244,956 
More than 12 months 

Total othc;r p~ytlbles 383,798 244,956 
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UNITED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINU~!l) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 8 Provisions 

Note 8A: Employee Provisions 
Office Holders: 

Annual leave 
Long service leave 

Subtot(II employ,e provlslott$-O/fice holdors 

~mpl9YHJ 9lhtr lhon offlt• hol~1n,; 
Annual leave 

lol'lg service le.ave 
Subtotal employee provlslon.s-omploye-os other than office 
holde.r, 
Total omployeo provisions 

Current 
Non-C:Urrent 
Totaf employee provisjcms 

Note 9 !Reserves 

Noto 9A; As.Ht Rovaluation Re1>erve 

2019 
$ 

50,072 
153,789 

203,861 

470,225 

565,395 

1,035,620 

1,218,044 

1,239,481 

1,239,481 

The asset re'V'8Jua1ion reserve reoords revak.la.lion of la,id and buildings held by the Branch. 

Ope,1ing bal"nce - 1 July 
Fair value gain on revaluation lal'ld and buildfng, 
Cfo,lng balanco- 30 Juno 

49/67 

13,829,904 

13,829,904 

2018 

$ 

79,039 
234,505 
313,544 

503,997 
563,656 

1,067,653 

1,381 ,197 

1,298,911 
82,286 

1,381,197 



UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Noto 10 Cash f low 

Note 10A: Cas-h Flow Reconcillatlon 

2019 
s 

Reconclllation of cash and cash equivaJents as per Statement of Financial 
Position to Cash Flow Statement: 

Cash and c:ish cquln1onts -as por: 
cash flow statemenl 
Statement of flnanciat position 
Difference 

Reconciliation of surpl us to net cash from operating 
activities: 

Surplus for 1he year 

Adjustments for non-..cash Items 
Depreciation/ 1:tmortisaUon 
Gain on disposal of propetty, plant and e<iulpmenl 
Gain on revatuation of financml assets 
Gain on revaluation of lnvostrno-nt properties 

Changes in assets/liab iliti es 
(Increase)/ decrease In net receivables 
(Increase)/ decrease in other current assets 
lncreaso-/ {dectease) In trade and other cradltorS 
Increase/ (decrease} in employee provisions 
Net cash provided by/ (u.sed In) operating activ'lllos 

Note 108: Cash flow information 
Cash Inflows from other reporting units 
United Voice - National Council 
United Voice - Westem Australia Stanch 
United Vojce - South Australia Branch 
United Voice - Queensland Braocll and conlro11ed entil3es 
United Voice - New South Wales Branch 
Total cash Inflows 

Cash outflows to other reporting units 
United Voice- Natiorial council 
United Voice - New South Wales Branch 

Total cash outfiow.s 

634,254 
634,254 

2,660,047 

218,691 
(314) 

(145,983) 
[2,520,878) 

79,447 
15,469 

124,879 
(141 ,716) 

289,842 

529,115 
9,190 

818 
70,990 
12,358 

622,471 

(1,082,862) 

98 
1,082,960 

2018 
$ 

385,238 
385,238 

370,085 

206,925 

(37,634} 

169,125 
42.606 

(57,001} 
(31,474) 

662,632 

367,853 
22,471 

450 
44,311 

1,914 
436,999 

(1,379,878) 

(1,379,878) 

Note: cash flow lnfo1mallon !Of from other reporting units disclosed include 10% GST on applicable 
transactions. 



UNITED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS \CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

No te 1OC: C.-edit standby arrnngements and loan facilities 
The Branch has • cre<lil card facility amountlng 10 S49.000 (2018: $49,000), This may be termlnat•d at 
any fime et lhe option of the bank. The balance of this facility is cleared monthly end interest rates are 
Wri8ble. 

Note 10D: Non~~sh transacUons 
There have been no non-cash fin3ncfng or Investing aeUvlties during. too year (2018: NII). 

Noto 10E: Not debt reco,,cllhufon 
Cash and cash equiva!enls 

Borrowings - repayable \\ithin one year 

Borro-Mngs: - repayable after one yea, 
Netdebl 

Note 10F: Reconciliation of movements of liabilities 10 cash 
f lows arising from financing activities 

2019 
$ 

634,254 

Other Assets LiabiUties from financing activliies 

Net debt at 1 July 
2017 

Cash Rows 

Net debt at 30 
June 2018 

CHhAows 

Net debl e t 30 
June 2019 

C'3Sh 8$$ClS 

259,042 

126.196 

365,236 

249,016 

634,254 

Borrowings - due 
w1thln 1 yoar 

51167 

Borrowings-due Total 
.ifter 1 yoar 

2018 
s 

365,238 

365.238 

259,042 

31!5.238 

249,016 

634,254 



UNITED VOIC E - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Noto 11 Contingent Uabilities, Asset• and Commitments 

Note 11A: C<>mmitments and Con tingencies 

Capital commitment'& 

At 30 June 2019 the Branch did not have tiny capital commttments (2018: Nil), 

Othor contingo nt assots or llablliUH: ( i.-o-. legal c laims) 

The Commlttee of Management Is not av,are of any other contlngent assets or liabilities that are llk$1)" to 
have• mete~I effect on the rewlts of the Branch. 

lea sing Commitments 

Operating Leas.es {as a le$sor} 

Non-cancellable operating leases renWls are receivable as follows.. 

Recetvablo-Minimum lease payments: 
not la!er Uum 12 months 

between 12: months and 5 ye&s 
g,eater than 5 years 

Minimum lease payments 

2019 

333,201 
346,040 

679,241 

2018 

394,485 
679,241 

1,073,726 

The Branch lease-s office space at both 82 Drummond StreeL Catfton and 117~131 Capet Stre,et. North 
Melbourne bu ildings under operatfn9 leases. The leases run for a p(JriOd mnging between 2 to 5 years 
with an op11on 10 renew the lease after that date, L.ease payments are reviewed re:gulatly to reRect marttet 
rentals, 

Opcra,tlng Leases (as a lot-see) 
ihe Branch does not have any material operating leases as a Sesso, al year end (2018: N'.ii}. 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31> JUNE 2019 

Note 12 !Related Party Disclosures 

Note 12A: R,elated Party Transactions for the Ropo,tlng Poriod 

For financial reporting purposes, under the FM Work (Registered Organls8tlons) Act 2009. United VOiee is 
divided into lhe following separate reporting units (ancl deemed re13ted parties): 

United Voice- National Council (UV - National Covncll - inoorporatlng Tasmania, Northern Territory and 
Australian CspitaJ Territory Branches) 
Uniled Voice - a ueensfand Branch. and Controlled entities (W - Qld Brancl'l) 
Uni ted Voice - New Soulh Wales Branch {UV NSW 8ne,3nch) 
United Voice - South Australia Branch (UV SA Branch) 
Untied Voioe -W8$te.rn Aus-Italia Blanch (UV WA Branch) 

The follow1r,g tabla provides the total amounl of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for 
the role:vanl yea,. 

Revenues received from United Voice - National CQunell 
includes the- followi ng: 

Re3rnbuBement or offtee, travel and administration expenses 
SpOf'ISOrsh;p 

Wage reimbursement 

Red1,1:n(San,cy reimbul'$ement 
Legal fees relmOOrsemen1 
Hospo Voice fundrng 

Expen$e$ paid to Un1ted Voice - Nttlonru Councu includot 
the following: 

SUSl.onlation fees 
lnsurallOe premiums ano other costs changed by National 
Council 
Campaign oosts recoveries 

Transfer of membership 

Amounts owed lo United Voice - National Council fnch,1de 
th.a following: 

Sustentatk>n fees 
Insurance !Premiums and other oosis changed by NaUonal 
Council 

Amounts owed by United Voice - NalJonal Council Include 
the following: 

Reimbursement of office, lravel and administration expenses 
Hospo Voice funding 

53167 

2019 
$ 

34/109 
37,727 

270,573 
108,254 

958,180 
23,192 

446 

265,638 

13,395 

43,274 

2018 
$ 

48.798 
27,272 

61,576 
36,737 
90,909 

154.473 

1,006,489 
147,SllS 

100,000 

281.840 

27,109 

110.022 



UNITED VotCE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT$ (CONTINUlall) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 12 Related Party 01SCIO$Uros (Continued) 

Note 12A: R,etated Party Transactions for the Rcpor'ting Poriod (Continued) 
2019 

s 
Revenues received f rom United Voice -Qld 8tanch and 
controlled e.ntities Includes the following: 
Transfer of memb0t'$hip 
Interest on loon 
Transfer o.f leave entitlements 

Expons.s paid to from United Voice - Qld Branch and 
controtlod ontltlos Includes the following: 
Printing 
Travel 00$1$ reimbUfSemeot 

Amounts owed by United Vok;e- Qld Branch and controlled 
entities include the following: 
Loaos recelv;able 

Amounts owed to United Voice - QJd Branch and c<>ntrolled 
entit ies loc:Jude the following: 

Printing 
Travel cosi reimbursement 

Revenue received from United Voice - NSW Branch Includes 
the following: 

Transfer of membership 
Reimbursement of merchandise costs 

RolmblNSament of travel and other expenses 
Payment of long service leave 

Expent.&s paid to United Voice - NSW Br,eneh lnch..tdO$ tho 
following: 

Trans/er of membetshlp 

Revenue received from United Voice - SA Branch Includes 
the following: 

Reimburserne.nt of merchandise costs 

Revenues reeelvod froni United Voice - WA Branch Includes 
the rollowlng: 

Interest on loan 

Amounts owed by United Voice - WA Branch fncludo tho 
following: 

Losns receivable 

54/67 

62,440 
8,550 

1,024 

1,126 

119 

12,239 

98 

818 

9,190 

164,433 

2018 
$ 

116 
44,170 

556 

2,351,191 

M2 

764 
3158 
808 

4-09 

22.471 

264.433 



UNJTED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 20t9 

Note 12 Related Party Dlselosuros (Contlnuod) 

Note 12A: R,efated Party Transactions for the Reporting Period (Continued} 

Terms and conditions of transactJons With related parties 
The sales to and purchase, from reJated p~les are ma;de on terms eq!JvaJent to those that p,evaU In 
arm's length trans.actions. Outstanding balances fot .sales and purchase.sat the year-end ate unsecured 
end interest !free and settlement oocurs in cash. There have been no guaran!ees pro\<ided oc t1ecelved 
for any related party receivables or payables., For 1he year ended 30 Julle 2019, lhe Branch has no1 
recorded any impairment of receivables relating to a mounts owed by related parties and declared 
person or body (2018: Nil). This ess~ent is undertaken each financial year through examining the 
nn•n<ifl PQ•itiqo qf IIJ~ rel~l~d po,\y , ng II>• m,<llel in which !he rela1eg pQny operfl~, 

Note 128 : K ey Management Personnel Remuneration for the Reporting Period 

Key management personnel comprise those indivic;h,mls who h.&ve the avthcwlty and respon:!Rbilty for 
ptaMing, directing and controlling the activities of the Branch, The Branch. has determined key 
managemen1 personflei comprise ot 

• J<,sslca Wolsh (Stanch Secretary) 
• Danny H,11 (Deputy Prcsklen1 - 117/18 - 13/06119) 
• Ben Redford (Stanch AS$iStant Secretary) 
• AU tom.ai!'ling members of lhe Committee of Management. 

Sho,Merm employee benefits 
Salary (fnclucfrng annual leave} 
01hPJ 

Total short-tern, employee benefits 

Pott-omplo)lfflont bonofits: 
Superannuation 

Total post-employment benefrts 

Other long-t,orm bonoflts: 

Long-service leave 

Total other liong-term benefits 

Termination benefits 

Total 

2019 
$ 

◄60,100 

40,095 

500 195 

69,329 
69,329 

12,67.9 
12,679 

582,203 

2018 
$ 

454,361 
37,988 

492,349 

67,760 
67.760 

13,448 

13,448 

573,557 

No other lransaetiOns occurred during lhe y&ar with elected officws, close family members or other 
relaled partiO:$ than tho$e relatad lo their membership or empklyment and on terms no more favourable 
than those applicable to any other m&mbet' of employee. 
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UNrTED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO lrHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 13 RemunoraUon or Auditors 
Value o f the $ervlces provided 

flnanciel statement audit services 

Other services 

Total rtimuneration of auditors 

Noto 14 Financial Instruments 

Financlal Ri$k Mana~emcnt Potky 

2019 201S 
$ $ 

22,950 22,000 

6,510 

22,950 28,510 

The Branch Committee of MooagertHltil moni tors: !he Branch' s financial r isk management pol icies and 
e>$posure anc:t approves financial ltans:ictlons enter·ed into. It also reviews the effectiveness qf internal 
controfs r•Ung co the oounterparty ctedlt risk. Squldily risk. market risk and interest rate risk. The Branch 
Committee of Management meets on a regular basis to nwiew the fcnancial exposure of tt,e Branch. 

(o) Credit Risk 

Exposure to credit risk relating to financial !:IS-Sets arise from the potential oon,performance by 
counterpartlM or contract obligations that oould lead to a financial loss of the Brandl. The Bronc:h does 
nol ha .. ·e any· material credit risk exposures as ifs major -source of revenue is the rec~t of membership 
rees, 

The maximum exposures to ·oredil risk by class of recognised financiaJ a1Sets at the end of the reponlng 
period Is equivalent to the eatrying vahle and classification of those financial a-ss.ets ( net of provisions) as 
presented in the statement of tinancial position. 

The Braf'I.Ch Ms no sfgn!Ocant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single 00unterparty or group 
of cow,tetpanles, The Class or assots desaibed as Trade and Other Receivables is considered ·to be the 
main source of credit risk related to the Branch. 

On a geog:raphkaJ basis. the 9!'anch's ltade and otMr ..eceivables are all based in Australia. 

The following• !,able details th& Bmnch's trade and ether receivables exposed lo credit t isk, Amounts are 
considered 'pasl due· When the debt h~s noc been settled, vl!lhin lhe terms and conditions a.greed 
between the !Branch and the customer or countorparty to tile transact.ion. Receivables fhat ere past due 
Sle 3S:SeSSed ror lmpaJrment by ascertaining solvency of the debtors and are provided for v.tlere rt.here are 
speeifie eireums1snces llldleatl11g that th• debt moy not be ruay repaid lo the Branch. 

The bafance ,of recelva~ Ulat remain Wilhln initial trade t&rmt {as detailed in the table) are considered 
to be of high credit quality, 
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UNITED VOi CE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO T HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 14 Financial Instruments (Continued} 

Ageing of financial assets that were past due but not Impaired for 2019 

Within 
0 to 30 3 1 to 60 61 to 90 trading 

days days days terms 
$ s $ $ 

Trade and other 
298,022 receivables 

Receivables from 
other reporting 73,274 
units 

Total 371,296 

Agclng of financial assets that were past due but not impaired for 2018 
Wdhin 

0 lO 30 31 10 60 61 to90 
tradin9 

days days dovs tem1s 
s $ s $ 

Trade and olffl 
313,612 r&eelvabkts 

Receivables f rom 
137,131 

oU~r reporting units 
Total 450,743 

90+ days To tal 

$ $ 

29$,022 

73,274 

371,296 

90+ da)'S Total 

s s 
313,612 

137,131 

450,743 

The Stanch has no significant concentrations of crecfrt risk eXPosure to any .single counterpalt)' or group 
or couotes-pat1les. 

The maximum exposuto to cr&dif risk at lhe reporting date is the carrying amount Qf the fiMndal asse-ts 
hekl by the 8raneh. The credi t quality of the- financial esse-ls is reviewed regularly by the Brar>eh 
Committee o~ Manag&ment and assessed by reference1 to extemal credit ratings 8$ following: 

Cas-h at bank 
A1• m(lng 

Cash 3t c-.1II and term deposits 

A1+ rating 
A2 rating 
A~rating 

Floating rete notes 
BBB rating 
BBB- rating 

Col.lateral held as security 

2019 

$ 

UJ3,104 

4. 139,888 

4,838,042 

4,875,300 

3,527,466 

The Branch d'oes not hold collateral wfth respect to Its receivables at 30 June 2019 {2018: Nil). 

67167 

2018 

s 
364,088 

4,041,519 

2,815.669 

4,875,300 

3,527,466 



UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO Tl-IE FINANCIA L STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR T HE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Notll 14 Financial Inst ruments (Continued) 

(b> Uquidity Risk 

Liqvidity f'iSk arise& from the possibii'ly tha! the 8raneh might Of'ICOunt.or dilr,cutty in &etlfng il'S debts or otherwise meeUng ii$ ()l)li(}.)4i01'1$ in (clMiOn to financial liabilities. The Branch man99e~ 
!his ri$k lhrough lhe following mechanisms: 

preparing forward looking caah flow estimates; 
meinlalning e reputable credit profile; 
mant!glng credit ri$k rolated lo financ.lal 86Set:s; 
only lnvoslirig surplus cash with map, tinancial NfiluliOns: ond 
romparing the ma1urlty profl!e of flnaneia,it !iab!lil>t$ with the realisation prollle ol finandsi assei.s. 

The tables below reflect an und:$C<xlf\tod oonlraclual maturity analysis for non-derivab\-e flnanc:18' llabi11UC$, 1'ho Bmnch does not hold dlreotly any derivative tlnoocial l!ablllt!es. 

Cash lklws realised from nnanclsl assets re11oc1. ma:~ent'i exp8dation a& to Iha Uning of reall!S!ion. ActU31 IJtning n'l3Y 1horcfore dif.er lrom that disc)osed. The tinfng o1 caatt no~9 
p,esonted In 1he 1able i o settle financlat llabllllies retleet,<i lh.e e.,!'fltl$l c:x>ntractual sattlemenA dates 

Financial Instrument Compos:lUon a~ M;11u rit_y Ana1'y.l& 

FIMnclal· Uabllllles dm fol' 

payment 

Trade payailles 

OthE, payables 

Tot:tl o~c,d outl!ows 

Within 1 Year 

2019 

$ 

2018 

$ 

(SJT,857) {551,620) 

(383,798) (2441956} 

(921,~ ,(796,576) 
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1 tos Yoors 

2019 

s 
2018 

$ 

Over5Years 

2019 

s 
2018 

$ 

Total 

2019 

s 

(537,657} 

(JBJ,71>8) 

(921,455) 

2018 

s 

(551,620) 

(~44,W;l} 

(796.576) 



UNITED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE flNANCIAL STATEMENT·s {CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Noto 14t Fi n;;1oc;lal Instrument& (Continued} 

{b) Li,quidityRl&k (continued) 

With in 1 Y4tlr 

2019 2018 

• $ 

Flnand al' assets - cash flow 
tecelvable 

Cash a!'ld cash equtvalents 6:U.,254 385,23!1 

Trade and other receivab58:s 371,296 450,743 

Short-term deposits 8,977.730 6 ,857,168 

Loans reoeivable 164.433 457,143 

F°S\Melal asse:is 12,410.958 

T~al anti~ ed lrlllo\vs 22,558,671 8,150,312 

Net inflow on flnandaf 
lnwumen.ts 21,637.216 7,353,736 

SS/87 

1 to 5 Years 

2019 

$ 

. 

2018 

$ 

1,593,002 

12,032, 1$7 

t3,625,159 

1l.62S,1S9 

OverSYeats 

2019 

s 

. 

2018 

$ 

565,479 

. 
5-65,479 

555,479 

Total 

2019 

• 

63•,.25• 

371,296 

8,977,730 

1$4,433 

12.410,956 

22.558,671 

21,6"37,216 

2018 

• 

385.2:!8 

450.743 

6,857,188 

2.615,624 

12.032, 157 

22.3<0,900 

21,544,374 



UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 14 Financial Instruments (Continued) 

(C) Markot Risk 

i. Into-test rate riSk 
E.xpcsure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financl81 lablllties recognised at the 
end of the roportlng period 'M'lereby a future c hange in interest ra1es will affect future cash flows 
°' the felr value of fi,ced rate financial &nstnJments. The Branch is atso exposed 10 eaming,g 
YOlatllity on floating rate lnstrumen1s.. 

Into,esI rate Mk is manag&d using a mix of fixed and noating financial instruments. The effective 
interest rale expenditure to Interest rate financial lns-irumenis are as follows: 

We4ghted Average 
Effectiw Interest 

Rat• 

2019 2018 2019 2018 

% % $ s 

Fto.911.ng ra-te imtrumont's 

CaS'h and cash f!Cll.ll"8lenls 0..35 0.35 634,2$4 385,238 

T err.n deposits 2,27 2.ss s ,gn,130 6,857,188 

Loans receivable 4.34 4,66 164,433 2,615,624 

f loating rate notes 4.08 4.76 8,402,766 8 ,402.766 

i. Foreign exch.allge risk 
Th& Sral\Ch is not exposed to direct flucl'Uations in foreign currencies. 

ii. Price rt,!\ 
Th& Sr.:inch is no exposed to any material commodity prioe risk. 

Iv. lntel8St rate risk 
The Branch has performed & sensitfvlty 30alysis relatlng lo 11s exposUte to lnteres-L ,ate risk al 
balance date. This se~IMty al\al}'$iS demor.strates !he efrect on the current year re.wlls and 
equity which could result from a change In this ri:$k, 
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UNrTED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANC1-1 

NOTES TO TiiE FINANCIAl STATicMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 20 19 

Note 14 Finencis_l ln&trumtnl$ {Continued) 

v,. Sensitivity Anatysls 

The folo'Mflg 1able lllusuates sensitivities to the Branch•s exposures to changes In interest rales 
and equity prices. The iable indicates the impact of how profit and equity values reported at the 
end of the tepOf'tlog period would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk; Wliable that 
management considers to be re8sonablV possible. 

Thesa sensitivities as-some lha1 the moverne:nt in a particular vartabte is Jndapendenl or other 
variables. 

lnteresJ rafe,s 
Yoar ,ondod 30 June 2019 
+2% in interest rates 
•2% In ln¼f"Osl rates 

Vt.all' ondtcl 30 June 2018 
+2%, in interest rates 
•2%. In lntcrost rates 

Units kJ M§nsge(ffund$ (/FSJ 
Year; ended 30 J une 2019 
+6% In ...-.11 prices 
-5%. in unh prices 

Year ended 30 June 2018 
+5%- In unit prices 
--59/4. in w,it prices 

Profit 
s 

363,586 
(34o,898) 

365.222 
(358,103) 

200,410 
(200,410) 

161,470 
(161,470) 

Equi'ty 
$ 

363,586 
(346,89'8) 

365,222 
(358,103) 

200.410 
(200,A10i 

181,470 
(161,470) 

No s-eosrtMly analysis has been perfonned on fo,eign exchange risk 8$ the Branch has oo material 
direct exposures to eutrency risk. There have been no changes in any Qf !he assum ptk>M used to 
prepare the above sensi1ivitv analysis from the prior yea,. 

Thora have been no changes W1 any of lhe assumptions used to pl'Gparc the above sellSmvity 
anal)'sis from the prior year. 
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UNITED VOICE- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Noto 1s 

Fair Values 

FaJr ValuG Moasurt>mont 

Pair value esfimaJ;on 

The fair values ot Rnancial assets and liabill!ies are p,esented In lhe fotlow!ng lab!e and can be compa<ed 
lo their carrying values ss presented tn the statement of financial posilion. Fair va!ue is the a.mount al 
which an asset could be exehanged, or a llabi!ty setUed, belween kncwdedgeable, w1Ulng parties at an 
arm "-s length transaction. 

Fair valut rnay bt based on Informal/on !hat is esUmated or subj~ to Judgmen~ Where ~ti,ang~ In 
8.$Sumptions may have a materiaJ Impact on the a mounts estimated. Areas of jvd98ment and the 
a.$$Umpllons have been detailed below. Wh6te pOS.SWle, valualiOn In.formation used to calculate fair 
values is extrtteted from the market. with more refleble information avail\lble from msrkets tha1 are 
acilvely trade:d. 

In this reg;ard, fair values for listed sectJrities &re <1btt1ined fr.om quoted mart<et f)id prices. Where 
securities are unlisted and oo market quotes are avai l.ablG, fair value ls obtained using dlseounted cash 
flow snalysls and other valU8t1on techniqu.es oommonly used by market partici'p&ms. 

Differences between fair values and carrying amoonts of financiaJ int.lrum ents wtlh lixed interest rates are 
ck.le to the change In dlscounl rates being applied b-y the mar11.el since their initial recognition by the 
Branch. Mos1 o f these instrum en1s, v.tlich are carried .al amortised cost { i .e. accounts receivable), ace to 
be held \lnlli malUrlfy and therefore the fair value flguce-s cak:ulated bear lltUe relevance to tile Sronch, 

The following table contains Ille carrying amOIJlliS and related fair values for lhe Branch's financial asset$ 
and liabilities: 

2019 2018 

Footnote Canyln9 Fair value Canylng 
Falrvatue value vafuo 

$ $ $ $ 
Financial a&sets 
cash and cash equivalents (1) 634,254 634,254 385.238 385,238 
Trade and other receivabJes Q) 371.296 371,296 450,743 450,743 
Short•te1111 bank deposits ~) 8,977,730 8,977,730 6,657,188 6,857,188 
loans receivab6e (i) 164,433 164,433 2,615.624 2,615,624 
Floa!l"9 t3te notes ~) 8,402,766 8;402.766 8,402,766 8.402,766 
Managed ir1ves1men1 ~) 
odlemes (IFS por1folio) 4,008,192 41008,192 3,629,391 3,629.391 
Total flnamoial asse.ti 2; sse,6T1 2;sse,&11 22,:340,11® 22,aqo,~ 

Financiat li.abiUtiM 
T ra<fe payables 

w 
537,657 537,657 551,620 551,620 

0lh81' payables ) 383,798 383,798 244958 244,956 
Total f inancial liabilities 921.455 921,455 796,576 796,576 

The fWvalues disclosed In the abovo Lable have been determined based 0(1 the following meltlOdologles: 

{i) Cash end cssh equivalents, accounts receivab&Q, other debtors, term deposiis, bans receivable, 
floalwlg rate notes. managed invutment Portfo'lio and accoul\ts payable and other payables are 
short-term inst,vments tn nature whose (::8rrying value is equivalent to fair va~e. Tracie end olher 
payablG$ exdude :imounts provided tot annual Ie;av11, which ts outskle the scope of AA.SB 139. 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO T HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 15 Fair Value Measurement (Continued) 

The lair values dlsdosed In lhe above la~e t-.ave btWJn determined based on the foflO'.Ying me1hodologies.: 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and Qther debtOts and aooounts paya~ and 0thGr 
payables a.re short-tenn Instruments In nature wl'IOSC carrying vaJua is e,quivalenl to faiir value. Trade 
and other payables exclude amounts prowled for annual leave, wh-ich is outside the s-cope of AASB 
139 

Fair Value Hierarchy 

AASB 13: Ft.ii Value Measurement r'equires the disclosure of fair value inforrnalion by level of lhe fair 
value hi-erarchy. 'ffl'lich categories f.ait value measurement into one of the three possible levels bas&d on 
lh& lowest levtil that an Input that is signiflcWlt to ttie measuremenl can be categorised into 85 follows: 

Level 1 

Me~surements based on quoted prices (unact;us.1ed) in aclive market'$ for idenlical assets or Uabflllles th-at 
lhe entity can access at !he measurement date. 

Level 2 

Measurements basttd on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level , that tve observat>ie for the 

asset of lla~ll\1y, el!Mr dlrecuy or lndile<Uy. 

Levol 3 

MeasuremenlS based on ut1observable inputs for fhe asset or ltability. 

The falr values of asstltS and UabffitiM that are not traded in an active macket are determined using one or 
more valuation techniques. Those valua!MJn techniques maXfflise, to the extent possible, the use or 
observoblc ma~et date. If .:itt signJOcant inputs required lo measure fair value are observable, the 4ls-set or 
liablllty is Included Jn Level 2. If one or moce significant inputs ate not based on observable marf<et data, 
the asset or liabUlty is Included In Leval 3. 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEA.ft ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Noto 15 Fair Value Measurement {Continued, 

The fotJowing tables provide an analysis of financial and non..flnanelal assets and liabiltties thal are 
measured at fair value, by fair valve hierarct,y. 

Fair value hierarc;hy- 3() June 2019 

Note Date of Level 1 Level2 Level 3 
VatuaUon 

$ $ s 
M!~ f!'lflt~$ure~ at fair value 
AvaUcible-for-saJe financial ass~ts 6A 30 June 2019 4,008,192 
Floating rate notes 6A 30 June 2019 8,402,766 
Land and Buik:lings - 11 7 - 131 Capel 68 30 June 2018 15,400,000 
$1reet, North Melbourne 
Investment Property - 62 Drummond 
S1reel, Catlton 

6C 30 June 2019 2,800,000 

Total 12,410,958 18.200,000 

The Branch does 001 havo any other as.secs or llabllltles that are recorded using ii feir value technique. 

Fa.~ va/,e hlerorchy- 3() June 2018 

Note Dote of Level 1 Level2 Level 3 
Valuation 

$ $ $ 
Assots mcasl\Jrod at fair value 
Avaflable .. for .. sale r1nancial assets 6A 30 Jvne 2018 3,629,391 
Floating rate motes 6A 30 Jvne2018 ~402.766 
Total 12.032.157 

The Branch does not have any other assets or liabilities that are recorded using a (air value- lechoiqu&. 
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UNITED VDIC E- VICTORIA BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YE:AR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019 

Note 16 Sec.tlon .272 Fair Wortt (Roglstered Organisations) Act 2009 

In accordance with the requirements of lhe Fair Work (RegisMred Organisations) Act 2009, the attention 
of members t$ drawn 101he provtsioos-of subsections (1) ti> (3) of section 272, which mads as follows: 

Information to be provided to members or Commission: 

(1) A member of a reporting unii. or the Commissioner. may app#y to the ,cporting unit foe specified 
prescribed lnf0<maUOn In rdlation to th$ iaporting ...,ii to be made available to the peraon makfng the 
applieaJion. 

(2) The appllcatlon must be t'I v.1ltlng arxl must specify the period witti n which, and the manner In 
whic~ the information is 10 be made a-vailable. The pe<lod must not be fess than 14 days after the 
lJIPpfica1i0n is 9iven to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reportin g unit must comply wi~h en applica6on made under subsection (1 ), 

Noto 17 Branch Dotails 

The registere~ office of the Branch is: 

117 - 131 C..pet Slreet 
North Melbourne VIC 3051 

Noto 18 &gmont Information 

The Branch operates solely in one reportf.ng sogmo11t. b&:ing the PfOvi:sion of induslrial services in 
Victoria, 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

OFFICER DECI.AAATION STAT!aM!,NT 

I, Ben Redfotd, being the Aciing Branch Seaetwy of United Voice - Victoria Branch, declare that ,he 
foUowlng acil\ltties did not occur di.ring the reporting pe.riod ending 30 June 2019: 

The. reporting unit did not 

• agree to receiVe ftnat1c!aJ suppon. from another reporting uni1 to contiooe as a goi:ng: concern 
(refe<s to agreemen1 regarding financial support not dollar amount} 

• agree to provide financial suppon to another reporting unit to ensuro they oon1Jnt..1e es a going 
concem (refers to agi&ement re~rdlng flnanc13.I support not dollar amount) 

• acquire an asset or liability due to an amalg.amatlOJ'l undet Pan 2 of CN!pter 3 of the RO Act., a 
restrueture or the branches of an organisation, a dslllrminau:,n o, rouocallon by th& General 
Manager, Fair Work Commtsskm 

• receive dona1ions 

• receive revenue from undertaking recovery of wages activity 

• pay compulsory levles 

• pay a grant th.at w.as $1,000 or les.s 

• pay· e granl that exceeded $1,000 

• pay separation and redtlndancy to holdetS of <>fflce 

• pay to a person fees or allowances to attand ,oonferenoes °' meetings as a repcesentattve of the 
reporting unit 

, pay a penalty Imposed under the RO Act °' the Fitir Worl< Act 2009 

• hav-e a paya~o to a:n employer for lhal employer meking payron deductions of member$hip 
sub:scrfc,tlons 

• hav.e a separation and redundancy provision in respect of hOtdatS ot office 

• hav,e other employee provisions In respect of hoJders of offioe 

• hav.e a separation and redundancy provision in te$l)ed of employees (other than holders or 
office) 

• Ila~ other cml)k)yee pro\lisklns in ree:pect or emp&oyees {other than holCSOrs ot offioe) 

• ha1Je a fuod or account for compldsoiy &e.vies, voluntary oontrirutions o, required by the ruies of 
the organiwfion or brand'! 

• transfer to or withdraw from a fund (other than the general f...,d), account. asset Of controlled 
entity 
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UNITED VOICE - VICTORIA BRANCH 

OFFICER DE:CL.ARATION STATEMENT (CONTINUEO) 

• have another entity administer the financial affairs of the reporting unit 

• mm<.,e a payn,enl to a fonner related psrly of the reporting unit 

_3/. .. ~SQZ_..£.-. ~ 
Ben Redford 
Aclilg. Branch Secretary 

23 October 2019 

North Melbou,ne 

67167 



 

 

 
 
 

GPO Box 2983, Melbourne VIC 3001  |  Tel: 1300 341 665  |  regorgs@roc.gov.au  |  www.roc.gov.au  
 
 

 

 

10 December 2019 

 

Paul Richardson 

Director - Finance, Governance and Administraion 

United Workers’ Union 

Sent via email: paul.richardson@unitedworkers.org.au 

 

 

 

 

Dear Paul Richardson, 

 

We are writing to remind you of the United Voice - Victorian Branch’s obligation to lodge a 

financial report under section 268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the 

RO Act). 

We hope you are on track to complete your financial report on time.  If not, please contact us 

as soon as possible to discuss ways we can assist you to meet the deadline. 

Did you know? The ROC is currently seeking to improve non-compliance with these three 

areas: 

 Providing the full report to members 

 Providing the report to members within the deadlines 

 Lodging the full report with the ROC within 14 days of the s.266 meeting. 

 

 

Compliance Calculator 

If you are not sure whether your planned dates are consistent with the 

RO Act, have a look at our compliance calculator.  The compliance 

calculator will help you work out your unique dates for when your report 

needs to be provided, presented and lodged. 

 

URGENT REMINDER: 
 
The United Voice - Victorian Branch’s financial report is due 
(FR2019/215) 

mailto:regorgs@roc.gov.au
http://www.roc.gov.au/
https://www.roc.gov.au/resources-and-decisions/compliance-calculator
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Your steps checklist 

Your financial year ended on 30 June 2019.  You should be well into the following process.   

Pre-lodgement checklist 
✔ 

Draft the financial report and have the committee of management pass the 
Committee of Management resolution 
Did you know? This is the first meeting in the financial reporting process  

 

Have the auditor complete and sign the auditor’s report 

Tips: You must use a registered auditor.  The SIGNED report is part of the full 
report.  Make sure it is included in what is provided to members 

 

Provide the full report to members 

This must be done: 

 If you are going to a committee of management meeting (requires a 
5% rule), within 5 months of 30 June 2019 

 If you are going to a general meeting of members, 21 days before the 
meeting 

 

Present the full report to the second meeting.   

Hints: This meeting must be within 6 months of 30 June 2019. This is either a 
committee of management meeting (requires a 5% rule) or a general meeting 
of members 

 

Lodge with the ROC within 14 days of the meeting – regorgs@roc.gov.au  
TIP: lodge it straight away – there’s no need to wait the full 14 days   

If you require further advice or assistance please email regorgs@roc.gov.au or call us on 

1300 341 665. 

Yours sincerely, 

 
Registered Organisations Commission 
 

 

Penalties apply 
We emphasise that sections 253, 254, 265(1)(a), 266 and 268 of the RO 
Act are civil penalty provisions.  
Failure of an organisation to prepare a full report, provide it to members, 
present it to a meeting and lodge with the ROC within legislative time 
frames may expose your organisation to Federal Court proceedings with the 
possibility of a pecuniary penalty being imposed upon an officer and/or the 
organisation.  

 

mailto:regorgs@roc.gov.au
http://www.roc.gov.au/
mailto:regorgs@roc.gov.au
mailto:regorgs@roc.gov.au
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2 July 2019 
 
Jessica Walsh 
VIC Branch Secretary 
United Voice - Victorian Branch 
Sent via email: jess.walsh@unitedvoice.org.au 
 
Dear Jessica Walsh, 
 
Re:  Lodgement of Financial Report - FR2019/215 

Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act)  
 
The financial year of the United Voice - Victorian Branch (the reporting unit) ended on 30 June 
2019. This is a courtesy letter to remind you of the reporting unit’s obligations regarding financial 
reporting. 

Loans Grants and Donations Statement 

The reporting unit is required to lodge a statement showing the relevant particulars in relation to 
each loan, grant or donation of an amount exceeding $1,000 for the reporting unit during its 
financial year. Section 237 of the RO Act requires this statement to be lodged with the Registered 
Organisations Commission (the ROC) within 90 days of the end of the reporting unit’s financial 
year, that is on or before 28 September 2019. 

The attached fact sheet Loans Grants and Donations (FS 009) summarises the requirements of 
the Loans Grants and Donations Statement. A sample statement of loans, grants or donations is 
available on our website.  

It should be noted that s.237 is a civil penalty provision. If a loan, grant or donation over $1000 has 
been made, failure to lodge a statement of loans, grants and donations (including failure to lodge 
on time) may result in legal proceedings being issued with the possibility of a pecuniary penalty (up 
to $105,000 for each contravention for a body corporate and up to $21,000 for each contravention 
for an individual) being imposed upon your organisation and/or an officer whose conduct led to the 
contravention. 

Financial report 

The RO Act sets out a particular chronological order in which your financial report must be 
prepared, audited, provided to members, presented to a meeting and then lodged with the ROC. 
The attached document Summary of Financial Reporting timelines (FS 008) summarises these 
requirements. 

We emphasise that the reporting unit is required to present its audited financial report to a meeting 
(either of members or of the committee of management, depending on your rules) no later than 31 
December 2019 (s.266). The full financial report must be lodged with the ROC within 14 days of 
that meeting (s.268).  

When assessing your financial report, we will continue to focus closely on timelines as well as how 
loans, grants and donations are reported. The financial report must break down the amounts of 
grants and donations and these figures will be compared to the loans, grants and donations 
statement (see attached Loans Grants and Donations fact sheet FS 009). 

https://www.roc.gov.au/
https://www.roc.gov.au/resources-and-decisions/fact-sheets-templates-and-webinars
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You can visit our website for more information regarding financial reporting, and fact sheets 
regarding financial reporting processes and requirements. A model set of financial statements 
developed by the ROC is also available on our website. It is not obligatory to use this model but it 
is a useful resource to ensure compliance with the RO Act, the Reporting Guidelines and the 
Australian Accounting Standards. 

It should be noted that s.268 of the RO Act is a civil penalty provision. Failure to lodge the full 
financial report (including failure to lodge on time) may result in legal proceedings being issued 
with the possibility of a pecuniary penalty (up to $105,000 for each contravention for a body 
corporate and up to $21,000 for each contravention for an individual) being imposed upon your 
organisation and/or an officer whose conduct led to the contravention (s.268). 

Auditor’s report 

When assessing the financial report we will also focus on the structure and content of the auditor’s 
report to ensure that it complies with the revisions made to the Auditing Standards which came into 
effect from 15 December 2016.  Please find here a link to guidance note Illustrative Auditor’s 
Report (GN 004) relating to these requirements (which can also be located on our website). 

REMINDER 
 

YOUR AUDITOR MUST BE REGISTERED (s.256) 
  

You must ensure that your auditor is registered by the Registered Organisations Commissioner.  A 
list of registered auditors is available on our website. 

 

Contact 

Should you require any clarification in relation to the above, please email regorgs@roc.gov.au.  

Yours faithfully, 

 
Kylie Ngo 
Registered Organisations Commission 
 

https://www.roc.gov.au/
https://www.roc.gov.au/running-a-registered-organisation/financial-reporting
https://www.roc.gov.au/resources-and-decisions/fact-sheets-templates-and-webinars
https://www.roc.gov.au/ArticleDocuments/314/gn004-audit-report-guidance.pdf.aspx
https://www.roc.gov.au/running-a-registered-organisation/register-and-obligations-of-registered-auditors
mailto:regorgs@roc.gov.au
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Fact sheet 

Summary of financial reporting timelines – s.253 financial reports 
General Information:  

 The full report consists of the General Purpose Financial Report, Committee of Management Statement, Operating 
report, s.255(2A) Report and signed Auditors’ Report  

 For an explanation of each of the steps below see our Fact sheet—financial reporting process. 

 

STEP 1:  
Reporting unit must prepare the General Purpose Financial Report, Committee of Management Statement, 

s.255(2A) Report and Operating Report as soon as practicable after the end of the financial year: 
 

 

STEP 2:  
Committee of Management statement – resolution to be passed by the Committee of Management in relation to the General 

Purpose Financial Report (1st meeting) 

 

STEP 3:  

Registered Auditor to prepare and sign the Auditor’s Report and provide to the Reporting unit within a reasonable 
timeframe 

 
IF RULES PROVIDE FOR PRESENTATION OF FULL REPORT 

AT GENERAL MEETING OF MEMBERS 
 (this is the default process in the RO Act) 

 
IF RULES PROVIDE FOR PRESENTATION OF FULL REPORT AT 

COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT MEETING 
(Special rules must be in the rulebook to use this process) 

 

STEP 4:  

Provide full report to members at least 21 days before the 
General Meeting 

 
 
 

STEP 4: 

Provide full report to members within 5 months of the reporting 
unit’s end of financial year 

 

 
 

STEP 5: 

Present full report to a General Meeting of Members 

within 6 months of the reporting unit’s end of financial 

year (2nd meeting)  

 
 
 

STEP 5:  

Present full report to Committee of Management Meeting 

within 6 months of the reporting unit’s end of financial year 

(2nd meeting) 

 

 
 

STEP 6:  

Prepare and sign the designated officer’s certificate 

then lodge full report and the designated officer’s 

certificate with the ROC within 14 days of the 2nd 

meeting 

 STEP 6: 
Prepare and sign the designated officer’s certificate then lodge 

full report and the designated officer’s certificate with the ROC 
within 14 days of the 2nd meeting 

 

  

https://www.roc.gov.au/ArticleDocuments/429/fs007-financial-reporting-process-fact-sheet.pdf.aspx
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Misconceptions  

Over the years, staff of the Commission have noted that there are some common 
misunderstandings made in relation to the Financial Reporting Process. They include:  
 
Misconception Requirement 


The Committee of 
Management statement is 
just copied from the 
Reporting Guidelines 


The Committee of Management statement must have the 
date of the Committee of Management resolution recorded 
upon it and it must be signed and dated BEFORE the auditor 
signs their report   

Further, if any of the statements within it need to be modified 
to suit the reporting unit (for instance not holding meetings) 
these changes must also be made 


The Auditor’s Report does 
not need to be signed until 
just before it is lodged with 
the ROC 


The Auditor’s Report must be signed and dated BEFORE the 
full report (including the Auditor’s Report) is sent to members 
and presented to the second meeting 


The Designated Officer’s 
Certificate must be signed 
before the report is sent to 
members 


The Designated Officer’s Certificate declares what the 
reporting unit HAS ALREADY DONE to provide the report to 
members and present it to the meeting.  It must be signed 
and dated AFTER sending the report to members and the 
second meeting 


Documents can be dated 
when they should have been 
signed or when the events in 
the document occurred 


Documents must always be dated at the date they are 
actually signed by an officer or auditor 


Any auditor can audit a 
financial report 

Only registered auditors can audit the financial report 


The Committee of 
Management statement can 
be signed at any time 


The resolution passing the Committee of Management 
Statement must occur and the statement signed and dated 
BEFORE the auditor’s report is signed and dated 


Any reporting unit can 
present the Full Report to a 
second COM meeting  


Only reporting units with a 5% rule in their rulebook are able 
to present their report to a second Committee of Management 
Meeting.  Otherwise, it must be presented to a General 
Meeting of members 


Everything can be done at 
one Committee of 
Management meeting 


If the rules allow for presenting the report to the Committee of 
Management, there must still be two meetings.  The first 
meeting resolves the Committee of Management statement 
(including signing and dating it).  Between the two meetings 
the Auditor’s report is signed and dated.  Only then can the 
full report be presented to the second Committee of 
Management meeting (if the rules allow) 


The reporting unit has 6 
months and 14 days to lodge 
their financial report with the 
ROC 


The reporting unit must lodge the financial report within 14 
days of the second meeting 

© Commonwealth of Australia 2018 

This fact sheet is not intended to be comprehensive.  It is designed to assist in gaining an understanding of the Registered Organisations Commission and its work.  
The Registered Organisations Commission does not provide legal advice. 

  

https://www.roc.gov.au/
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FS 009 
(14 December 2018) 

Fact sheet 

Loans, Grants & Donations  

The Loans, Grants & Donations Requirements 

The Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act) requires an organisation or 
branch to lodge a loans, grants and donations statement (the statement) within 90 days of 
the ending of the financial year.  
 
Under the Commissioner’s Reporting Guidelines, a reporting unit’s General Purpose 
Financial Report (the financial report) must break down the amounts of grants and donations 
(see below). The figures in the financial report will be compared to the loans, grants and 
donations statement.  

The Loans, Grants & Donations Statement  

Section 237 of the RO Act applies to every loan, grant and donation made by an 
organisation or branch during the financial year that exceeds $1000. The following 
information must be supplied to the Registered Organisations Commission (the ROC) for 
each relevant loan, grant or donation:  

 the amount,  

 the purpose,  

 the security (if it is a loan),  

 the name and address of the person to whom it was made,* and  

 the arrangements for repaying the loan.*  

*The last two items are not required if the loan, grant or donation was made to relieve a 
member of the organisation (or their dependent) from severe financial hardship.  

 
The statement must be lodged within 90 days of the end of the financial year and the ROC 
has a Template Loans, Grants and Donations Statement on its website. The ROC 
encourages branches and organisations to lodge the statement even if all of the figures are 
NIL.  

https://www.roc.gov.au/ArticleDocuments/428/tf002-sample-lgd-statement-template-form.docx.aspx
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Common misconceptions  

Over the years, staff of the Commission have noted that there are some common 
misunderstandings made in relation to the Statement. They include:  
 

Misconception Requirement 


Only reporting 
units must 
lodge the 
Statement. 




All branches and organisations, regardless of whether 
they lodge a financial report, must lodge the statement 
within 90 days of the end of the financial year. An 
organisation cannot lodge a single statement to cover all 
of its branches. 


Employees can 
sign the 
Statement. 




The statement must be signed by an elected officer of the 
relevant branch. 


Statements can 
be lodged with 
the financial 
report. 




The deadline for the statement is much shorter (90 days) 
and if it is lodged with the financial report it is likely to be 
late. 

 

Grants & Donations within the Financial Report  

Item 14(e) of the Commissioner’s Reporting Guidelines requires the reporting unit to 
separate the line items relating to grants and donations into grants or donations that were 
$1000 or less and those that exceeded $1000.  
 
As such, the note in the financial report relating to grants and donations will have four lines.  
 
In the ROC's Model Statements the note appears as follows:  

Note 4E: Grants or donations* 

Grants:  2017  2016  

Total expensed that were $1,000 or less  -  -  

Total expensed that exceeded $1,000  -  -  

Donations:    

Total expensed that were $1,000 or less  -  -  

Total expensed that exceeded $1,000  -  -  

Total grants or donations  -  -  

 
The Commissioner’s Reporting Guidelines requires that these line items appear in the 
financial statements, the notes or in the officer’s declaration statement, even if the figures 
are NIL.  

https://www.roc.gov.au/ArticleDocuments/428/tf008-model-financial-statements-template-form.docx.aspx
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Implications for filing the Financial Report  

During their review of the financial report staff of the ROC may confirm that the figures in the 
financial report match the disclosures made in the statement. Any inconsistencies in these 
figures will be raised with the organisation or branch for explanation and action.  
 
This may involve lodging an amended loans, grants or donations statement. Any failure to 
lodge a loans, grants or donations statement or lodging a statement that is false or 
misleading can attract civil penalties under the RO Act.  
 
If a reporting unit did not fully comply with these requirements in their last financial report, its 
filing letter will have included a statement reminding the reporting unit of its obligations. 

It is strongly recommended that all reporting units review their filing letters from the 

previous financial year to ensure any targeted concerns are addressed in their latest 

financial report. Failure to address these individual concerns may mean that a financial 

report cannot be filed.  

Previous financial reports and filing letters are available from the website.  

Further information  

If you have any further questions relating to the loan, grant and donation disclosure 
requirements in the statement or the financial report, please contact the ROC on 
regorgs@roc.gov.au  
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